
1 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING October 9, 2017 

1. ROLL CALL

2. INVOCATION – Chaplain Jonathan Smith, City of Delaware Fire
Department

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 
held on September 25, 2017, as recorded and transcribed.
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary for the Work Session of Council held 
October 2, 2017, as recorded and transcribed.

5. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Shade Tree 

Commission meeting held July 25, 2017. 
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Historic Preservation

Commission meeting held July 26, 2017.  
C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Civil Service

Commission meeting held September 6, 2017. 
D. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Planning Commission

meeting held September 6, 2017. 
E. Resolution No. 17-58, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to

enter into a Cooperative Agreement with the Ohio Department of 
Transportation for the resurfacing portions of US-42 between US-
36 and CR-270 (Horseshoe Rd.). 

F. Establish October 23, 2017 at 7:45 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading for Ordinance No. 17-66, an 
ordinance for the City of Delaware for approval of a Rezoning 
Amendment for Fire Station 304 on 4.102 acres to A-1 
(Agricultural District) and located at the northwest corner of 
Cheshire Road and Glenn Parkway and Ordinance No. 17-67, an 
ordinance for the City of Delaware for approval of a Conditional 
Use Permit for Fire Station 304 on 4.102 acres zoned A-1 



2 
 

(Agricultural District) and located at the northwest corner of 
Cheshire Road and Glenn Parkway.  

 
6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
8. PRESENTATION 

A. Proclamation recognizing Melissa Bargar of Oakland Nursery for 
her efforts to the beautification of Downtown Delaware  

B. Proclamation recognizing October 8 thru October 14 as Fire 
Prevention Week 

C. Sister City Annual Report – Rand Guebert, Chairman of Sister City 
Advisory Committee 

D. Presentation on Electric Aggregation – Jay Sell, Aspen Energy 
 
9. CONSIDERATION OF NEW LIQUOR PERMIT 

A. Tuan Nguyen LLC, DBA Jennis Nail Spa & Bar, 1824-28 Columbus 
Pike, Delaware, OH 43015.  Permit Class:  D3 

 
10. FIFTH READING of Resolution No. 17-54, a resolution adopting the 

2018-2022 Five-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  
 
11.  THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 17-61, an ordinance amending the 

Neglect of Companion Animals Section of the Animal and Fowl Chapter of 
the General Offenses Code (Public Hearing scheduled for October 23, 
2017 at 7:25 p.m.)  

 
12. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Resolution No. 

17-57, a resolution creating a Designated Outdoor Refreshment Area 
(DORA) for Downtown Delaware and enacting regulations.   

 
13. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 17-62, an ordinance amending the 

employment agreement with the City Manager.  
 
14. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-59, a resolution of commitment to 

Sustainable2050.  
 
15. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-64, an ordinance approving the 

amendment to petition for expansion of the Northern New Community 
Authority and make related findings, provide the method of selecting the 
Board of Trustees of the New Community Authority, and define the 
boundary of the expanded New Community District.  

 



3 
 

16. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-65, an ordinance approving a 
Community Reinvestment Area Agreement and School Compensation 
Agreement with KB42, LTD., Delaware City Schools, Delaware Area 
Career Center and the City of Delaware for investment in real property 
improvements on a building at 42 North Sandusky Street and declaring 
an emergency.  

 
17.  CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-66, an ordinance for the City of 

Delaware for approval of a Rezoning Amendment for Fire Station 304 on 
4.102 acres to A-1 (Agricultural District) and located at the northwest 
corner of Cheshire Road and Glenn Parkway.  

 
18. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-67, an ordinance for the City of 

Delaware for approval of a Conditional Use Permit for Fire Station 304 on 
4.102 acres zoned A-1 (Agricultural District) and located at the northwest 
corner of Cheshire Road and Glenn Parkway. 

 
19. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-68, an ordinance for the City of 

Delaware for approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final Development 
Plan for Fire Station 304 on 4.102 acres zoned A-1 (Agricultural District) 
and located at the northwest corner of Cheshire Road and Glenn 
Parkway. 

 
20. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
21. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
22. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM E DATE: 10/09/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-58 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION FOR THE RESURFACING PORTIONS OF US-42 BETWEEN 
US-36 AND CR-270 (HORSESHOE RD.) 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) intends to resurface portions 
of US-42 between US-36 and CR-270 (Horseshoe Rd.). This project falls under 
ODOT’s Urban Paving policy. The ODOT Urban Paving policy requires that the 
local municipality contribute 20% of the total cost for the surface treatment for 
the portion of the project within its corporation limits. Additionally, the City is 
required to contribute 100% of the cost of non-surface related items such as 
signal repairs, curbs, gutters, utility relocation expenses, and full-depth 
pavement repairs. Once final plans are developed and quantity splits are 
determined, the City of Delaware will be invoiced for its share of the project 
costs approximately six weeks before the project’s scheduled sale. The sale is 
tentatively scheduled for early 2018. It is anticipated this work will occur in the 
summer of 2018. 
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
ODOT District 6 is administering the project, and the State requires consent 
legislation be passed by the local government to allow for the project to occur 
within the corporate limits.   



 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Based on initial cost estimates, the projection for the City’s contribution for 
this project is estimated to be $89,000 ($39,000 for resurfacing and $50,000 
for non-surface related items). The initial amount budgeted for the work in the 
City of Delaware is $100,000.  The City has requested to be invoiced at this 
time so that funds can be paid in 2017, as appropriated in the 2017 Budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E. – Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-58 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH 
THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR 
THE RESURFACING PORTIONS OF US-42 BETWEEN 
US-36 AND CR-270 (HORSESHOE RD.). 

 
WHEREAS, the STATE has identified the need for the described project: 
 

This project proposes to resurface pavement a portion of US-42 between US-36 
and CR-270 (Horseshoe Rd.); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation has estimated the 
City’s contribution to be $39,000 for resurfacing plus an additional $50,000 for 
City responsible items.  The project is projected to sell early in 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware, referred to as the Local Public Agency (LPA), 
gives consent to the Director of Transportation to complete the project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Delaware, Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. The City hereby agrees to cooperate with the Director of 
Transportation of the State of Ohio in the planning, design and construction of 
the identified highway improvement project and grants consent to the Ohio 
Department of Transportation for its development and construction of the project 
in accordance with plans, specifications and estimates as approved by the 
Director; 
 

SECTION 2. The Ohio Department of Transportation shall assume and bear 
one hundred percent of the necessary costs of the State’s highway improvement 
project; the City’s share of the cost for the pavement surface treatment is 
estimated to be $39,900. 
 

SECTION 3. The City agrees to assume and bear one hundred percent 
(100%) of the total cost of those features requested by the City which are not 
necessary for the improvement as determined by the State and Federal Highway 
Administration; 

 
SECTION 4. The LPA agrees that all right-of-way required for the described 

project will be acquired and/or made available in accordance with current State 
and Federal regulations. The LPA also understands that right-of-way costs 
include eligible utility costs. The LPA agrees that all utility accommodation, 
relocation and reimbursement will comply with the current provisions of 23 CFR 
645 and the ODOT Utilities Manual. 
 



SECTION 5. Upon completion of the project, and unless otherwise agreed, 
the LPA shall: (1) provide adequate maintenance for the project in accordance 
with all applicable state and federal law, including, but not limited to, Title 23, 
U.S.C., Section 116; (2) provide ample financial resources, as necessary, for the 
maintenance of the project; (3) maintain the right-of-way, keeping it free of 
obstructions, and (4) hold said right-of-way inviolate for public highway 
purposes. 
 

SECTION 6. The City Manager of the City of Delaware is hereby empowered 
on behalf of the City of Delaware to enter into contracts with the Director of 
Transportation necessary to complete the described project. 
 

SECTION 7. That the Clerk of Council will transmit to the Director of 
Transportation a fully executed copy of this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 8. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 9.   That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage.   
 

 
VOTE ON RESOLUTION:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



DELAWARE SISTER CITY ADVISORY BOARD 
4th ANNUAL REPORT - DRAFT 

AUGUST 1, 2017 
 

 
   Current Members:  Representing: 
                          
   Rand Guebert   Local citizens 
   Julie Horvath   Delaware City Schools 
   Will Kopp                                   Ohio Wesleyan University 
   Julie Means   Local citizens 
   Carolyn Kay Riggle                  City Council 
   Colleen Rush   Local citizens 
   Rita Selle-Grider                       Local citizens 
    
    
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
 
The highlight of the past year was the recent visit of a delegation from Delaware to 
our sister city of Sakata, Japan.  This visit was envisioned after a delegation from 
Sakata visited Delaware in November 2015.  It was very satisfying to see it come 
together.  We would like to thank Mayor Riggle and City Manager Tom Homan for 
leading the delegation. 
 
In other respects we experienced the postponement of various activities and 
recognized the need to reshape our Advisory Board.  We see that it is necessary to 
be both purposeful and patient in (1) developing our relationships with Baumholder 
and Sakata and (2) evaluating the future of our relationship with Omutninsk. 
 
While we would eventually like to have a relationship with a Spanish-speaking city 
we recognized that Arequipa, Peru might not be the best fit for Delaware. 
 
 

FOURTH YEAR DEVELOPMENTS 
 

We continued to meet regularly on the second Tuesday of each calendar quarter.  
Progress that we had hoped to make with our sister cities in Baumholder and 
Omutninsk was delayed and put off to the coming year.  
 
The Baumholder city government has appointed a group to work with us in the 
coming year and this should allow us to have more effective contact.  We had also 
expected the dedication of the museum to take place this past Spring, but this was 
put off until Spring 2018.  This delay was perhaps fortuitous as we were consumed 



this past Spring with the City visit to Sakata.  The OWU soccer team had also hoped 
to visit Baumholder in the summer of 2016, but that was also postponed to this year. 
 
We were not successful this past year in continuing our contacts with Omutninsk—
our emails went unanswered.  We will continue to look for new ways to contact 
people there and perhaps plan a visit.  It is not much more expensive to fly to Kirov, 
the nearest large city, than to fly to other cities in Eastern Europe. 
 
As mentioned previously the visit of Mayor Riggle and her group to Sakata this April 
was very encouraging.  Our delegation was treated to many special events and given 
an extensive introduction to the City.  Middle school students from Sakata continued 
their regular visits to Dempsey last November.  We feel that we have developed a 
good foundation for further contacts and activities. 

 
Locally, both Delaware Hayes and Buckeye Valley High Schools have begun offering 
the Global Scholars Diploma program.  As these programs develop we believe that 
we will be able to offer opportunities to those students involved. 
 
Our committee underwent some restructuring during the year to make it more 
effective.  Our goal is to involve more people in Delaware with our sister cities and 
we believe that we have opportunities for this in the year ahead. 
 
 

OBJECTIVES FOR 2017-2018 
 

Our major goal for the year ahead is to mobilize a group from Delaware to attend 
the dedication in Baumholder of the museum to the American army veterans who 
have had such a large impact on the city of Baumholder since the 1950’s.  We hope 
that local army veterans who were stationed there will want to attend, as well as 
members of their families and representatives of the city.  As soon as a date is fixed 
for the event will begin to promote it.  There is passenger train service now between 
Frankfurt airport and Baumholder. 
 
Middle school students from Sakata will be coming to Dempsey again this year, and 
we will be looking for ways to build on this past Spring’s visit.  As a private citizen 
Saskia Brogan, whose family hosted a Sakata student when she was at Dempsey, 
was able to visit Japan this Spring and stayed with the family of the child they 
hosted.  Also, two students from Buckeye Valley will be studying in southern Japan 
this coming school year with the Rotary Exchange program.  We want to encourage 
international education for interested children in our community. 
 
We will look carefully at the possibility of having several Delaware residents make a 
private visit to Omutninsk to see how we can best develop this relationship or 
determine that it has run its course. 
 



With our new committee structure we hope to be more effective at maintaining 
regular contact with our sister cities and reaching out to local residents of Delaware. 
 
Developing sister city relationships is a long term process.  The Advisory Board 
would like to thank City Council for its continuing support. 

 
 



City Of Delaware
Community Energy Aggregation Program



Energy Aggregation

Local governments in Ohio have the authority to
aggregate/bundle the usage of the community into a
collective buying group and lower their energy costs. These
economies of scale allow the community to procure energy
at “wholesale” costs that would not otherwise be available
to a resident by independent means.



The Process

Officials Pass 
Legislation For 

Ballot Issue

Residents 
Approve Ballot 

Issue

Public Hearings 
Held To Present 

And Approve 
Plan Documents

Plan Documents 
Are Submitted To 

PUCO

PUCO Issues 
The Community’s 

Certificate

Data Is Retrieved 
From Parent 

Utility

Pricing 
Established And 

Approved

Opt-Out Notices 
Sent To Eligible 

Residents

Program Is 
Implemented



Economic Impact

The current market rate in an aggregation program is no more than 5.25 cents/kWh fixed, while the
five-year utility average has been roughly 6.50 Cents/kWh. As the typical household uses 12,000
kilowatt hours (kWh) per year, the projected estimated savings per household would be:

(.0650-.0525)*12,000 = $150.00

The City of Delaware has approximately 15,000 households. At 70% participation, the estimated
annual community wide savings would be:

15,000*.70*$150.00 = $1,575,000



The Aspen Advantage
Aspen Energy was founded in 2000 when the natural gas market became deregulated; seventeen
years and tens of thousands of customers later, we have become widely regarded as one of the
largest energy consultants in the Midwest. We represent stable, reputable suppliers in the industry
with a broad range of products and services to best serve the needs of our customers. Mitigating our
clients’ exposure to market risk by monitoring industry trends is a critical component of our consulting
service.

As aggregation has become more popular, we have expanded our relationships with local
governments to offer this beneficial product and service. We are advocates of flexible programs that
are devoid of Early Termination Fees (ETFs) to ease the concerns of residents being “stuck” in the
community sponsored program. The key to a successful implementation of an aggregation program is
education, and we are dedicated to educating the community throughout the process.



The Aspen Advantage - Cont’d
Our commitment ensures aggressive, low rates for the residents and financial consideration from the
supplier to the community. We also assist in negotiating Civic Grants for community improvement to
go along with program implementation.

For More Information Contact:

Jay Sell| Senior Energy Consultant
Aspen Energy Corporation
4789 Rings Road, Suite 100

Dublin, Ohio 43017
 (614) 884-5300 ext. 234

 (614) 336-8362
www.aspenenergy.com

http://www.aspenenergy.com/














  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  10    DATE: 10/09/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-54 
 
READING: FIFTH    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2018-2022 FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A work session to discuss the CIP was held on Monday, October 2. 
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Pursuant to Section 79 of the Charter, the CIP is to be submitted to City 
Council by August 15 and adopted no later than October 15.  Adoption is 
scheduled for Council’s October 9 meeting. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 



RECOMMENDATION: 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
CIP 



RESOLUTION 17-54 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2018-2022 FIVE-
YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP). 

 
 WHEREAS, a revised Five-Year Capital Improvements Program was 
prepared and submitted to City Council in accordance with Article XVII, 
Section 79 of the City Charter, and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council has considered the proposed plan and has 
determined that it shall be the future public improvement plan for the City of 
Delaware, and  
 
 WHEREAS, Article XVII, Section 80 of the City Charter requires that City 
Council adopt, by resolution, the Five-Year Capital Improvements Program on 
or before October 15, and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council will review the 2018-2022 CIP at Work Sessions 
before October 10. 
 
 WHEREAS, Council discussed possible amendments to the plan which 
may be considered as part of the adopted 2018 budget.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the 2018-2022 Five-Year Capital Improvements 
Program for the General Fund, Airport, Fire, Police, Public Works, Parks, 
Equipment Replacement, Technology, Building Maintenance, Water, Sewer, 
Storm Sewer, Refuse, Parks Impact, Police Impact, and Fire Impact attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby adopted as the official plan for future public 
improvements. 
 
 SECTION 2.  That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after its passage.   
 
PASSED:     _____________________, 2017  YEAS ____     NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: __________________________     ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 10/09/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-61    RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       October 23, 2017 at 7:25 p.m. 
        
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE NEGLECT OF COMPANION ANIMALS 
SECTION OF THE ANIMAL AND FOWL CHAPTER OF THE GENERAL 
OFFENSES CODE. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Councilman Jones brought this issue forward and requested staff draft an 
ordinance, providing a bill that was proposed but not adopted in the state 
legislature as an example. In reviewing the City’s existing animal neglect 
statute, staff identified areas in which it could be strengthened.  The language 
proposed in this initial draft is geared towards enforceability while avoiding 
unintended consequences.  It has been reviewed and approved by the City’s 
Community Services Officer (CSO) and the County Dog Warden. 
 
UPDATE 10/09/2017:  Staff is working on potential amendments based on 
the comments from Council at the September 25th meeting and will be 
presented at the October 23 meeting.  
 
UPDATE 9/25/2017: Based on discussion and testimony at the September 11 
Council meeting the attached draft includes the following changes: 

1. Detailed requirements for providing shelter (b) (1)  
2. Defined requirements for shelter structure, detailed in (b) (3) 

 



After the meeting Councilman Hellinger proposed a different approach in which 
the city would adopt animal neglect ordinance to apply to every animal kept 
within the city.  Councilman Hellinger provided a sample law from Illinois and 
with some suggested additions (see attached email).  Staff recommends 
discussing this potential approach prior to moving forward with a public 
hearing on the draft.  

 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
This legislation is geared towards providing additional protection for the welfare 
of companion animals and increasing the penalties for repeat offenders. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):   
Any ordinance that adds new things that can be enforced could have an impact 
on police department staffing.  As a complaint driven ordinance, the impact is 
difficult to predict. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-61 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE NEGLECT OF 
COMPANION ANIMALS SECTION OF THE ANIMAL 
AND FOWLS CHAPTER OF THE GENERAL OFFENSES 
CODE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has promoted numerous animal-related 
ordinances, designed to encourage responsible companion animal ownership 
and support the humane treatment of animals; 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of Ohio currently has no regulations on the 
tethering of companion animals; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, companion animals that are tethered outdoors can subjected 
to serious physical harm from weather, other animals, or the tethers 
themselves; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, companion animals that are tethered can become lonely, 
bored, and anxious, which can lead to heightened aggression toward adults, 
children, and other animals.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The Neglect of Companion Animals Section is amended as 
follows: 
 

505.25 - Neglect of companion animals. 
 
(a) Definitions 

For purposes of this section,  
(1)"neglect" shall mean any act or omission which fails to provide 
appropriate care for, or attention to, any companion animal; or which has 
caused or may cause injury or unnecessary suffering to any companion 
animal.  
 
(2) “Tether” means a rope, chain, cord, dog run or pulley, or similar 
restraint for holding an animal in place that allows a radius in which 
the animal can move about. 
 
(3) “Serious physical harm” shall have the same meaning as O.R.C. 
951.31. 
 



(b) 
No person having charge of any companion animal shall neglect it. who 
confines or who is the custodian or caretaker of a companion animal 
shall negligently do any of the following: 

(c) 
The following are guidelines to appropriate care or attention: 
(1) 

No person who shelters an animal from the elements by means of 
an animal shelter, cage, or pen, shall fail to conform it to the 
following requirements:  
 
 (A) The shelter, cage, or pen, shall be appropriate to the  
 companion animal’s size, weight, and other characteristics, 
 with sufficient space to allow the animal to turn about freely 
 and lie in a normal position;    
 

(B) The shelter, cage, or pen, shall provide sufficient shade to 
 allow the animal to escape the direct rays of the sun at all 
 times; 
 
 (C) The shelter, cage, or pen shall be regularly cleaned and 
 sanitized and free of insect or rodent infestation. Fail to 
provide shelter for the companion animal must be provided which 
is dry, sanitary, and of suitable size. 

(2) 
Fail to provide food and drink must be provided which is clean, of 
sufficient quantity and appropriately available to the animal when 
unattended. 

(3) 
Fail to provide shelter from the elements including heat, cold, 
wind, rain, snow, or excessive direct sunlight. If the companion 
animal is housed outside, a structure for shelter and protection 
must be provided that is suitable for the species, age, condition, 
size, and type of that animal. The structure must be enclosed and 
insulated, having a single entrance/exit. The structure shall be 
moisture-resistant, wind-resistant, and of suitable size and type 
to allow the companion animal to stand, turn about freely, and 
lie in a normal position. The structure shall be made of a durable 
material with a solid, moisture-proof floor raised at least two (2) 
inches from the ground. Suitable drainage shall be provided so 
the animal has access to a dry area at all times. Space shall be 
provided which allows for reasonable movement and exercise; which 



is free of mud, standing water, fecal matter, , or other filth; and which 
allows for access to shelter and light in reasonable amounts. 

(4) 
Fail to obtain Companion animals must have reasonably necessary 
veterinary care for the companion animal, including but not limited 
to immunizations against parvovirus, leukemia, and rabies. 
 

(5)  
 

(c)  
Restraints Tethers of unattended companion animals must be of a 
sufficient length to allow reasonable freedom of movement, 
without allowing not allow the animal to leave the harborer's property 
and the area of restraint must be free of entangling objects.(6) Restraint 
devices Tethers must be of suitable size and secured to the animal in 
such a manner that the animal will not be injured or choked.  
Restraints of unattended companion animals must be of sufficient 
length to allow reasonable freedom of movement.  Strict liability is 
intended for enforcement of this section. 

 
 (d) 

Violation of this section is a minor misdemeanor punishable by a fine of 
up to one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) on a first offense and a second 
degree misdemeanor for a second offense within one year. However, if a 
companion animal experiences serious physical harm as a result of a 
violation of this section, violation that section is a misdemeanor of 
the first degree. 
  

(e) 
For purposes of enforcement of this section, unless specifically stated 
otherwise, strict liability is intended. 

 
SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
 
 
 



PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 10/09/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO:  17-57 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       October 9, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION CREATING A DESIGNATED OUTDOOR REFRESHMENT AREA 
(DORA) FOR DOWNTOWN DELAWARE AND ENACTING REGULATIONS. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
Effective 4/30/17, the City of Delaware is eligible to create a DORA under Ohio 
Revised Code 4301.82.  The City can only have one district and it cannot 
exceed 150 contiguous acres.  This application must have the following 
elements: 

1. Map/survey of the area 
2. General statement of the nature and types of establishments that will be 

located in the area 
3. A statement that the area will have at least 4 qualified liquor permit holders 
4. Evidence that the uses of land in the area are in accordance with the zoning 

plan. 
5. Proposed requirements for ensuring public health and safety in the area, which 

includes: 
a. Signage designating the area, hours of operation 
b. Personnel needed to ensure public safety 
c. Sanitation plan 
d. Requirement that alcohol only be sold in plastic bottles or containers. 

At Council’s request, staff has drafted an application which includes the 
required elements. 
   



REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
Legislation is required pursuant to the process established in the Ohio Revised 
Code for creating a DORA. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  
Based on Council’s decision to limit the DORA to special events, the fiscal 
impact will be lower than if the DORA was established all of the time.  Potential 
impacts include the cost of signage, cups/stickers, and increased staffing for 
refuse and police.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S):  
Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)  
DORA Application 
Main Street Delaware Letter  
Public Input Received 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-57 
 

A RESOLUTION CREATING A DESIGNATED 
OUTDOOR REFRESHMENT AREA (DORA) FOR 
DOWNTOWN DELAWARE AND ENACTING 
REGULATIONS. 

 
 WHEREAS, effective April 30, 2017, a municipality with a population of 
less than thirty-five thousand is permitted to create a designated outdoor 
refreshment area (“DORA) pursuant to the provisions of Ohio Revised Code 
§4301.82; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on  September 25, 2017 at Council’s request, the City 
Manager submitted an application to City Council for approval of a DORA in a 
specified section of Downton Delaware (the “DORA Application”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to §4301.82(C), notice of the filing of the DORA 
Application and the date of a public hearing thereon was published in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the City on September 25, 2017 and 
October 2, 2017; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the public testimony on the application was held on October 
9, 2017 during which public testimony was held; and 
 

WHEREAS, §4301.82(F)(1) requires the City to establish requirements 
that the City determines necessary to ensure public health and safety in the 
area; and 

 
WHEREAS, the DORA Application as submitted and attached to this 

resolution as Exhibit A, meets the requirements of §4301.82(B)(1-5), it being 
further clarified that the boundary of the DORA includes the premises of the 
permit holders located at the street addresses listed in the application; and 

 
WHEREAS, approval of the Designated Outdoor Refreshment Area will 

enhance the experience of patrons of business establishments during special 
events within the Downtown Delaware area. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF DELAWARE, DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO: 
 
 SECTION 1.   City Council approves the DORA Application as having met 
the requirements of ORC §4301.82(B)(1-5) and approves the establishment of a 
Downtown Delaware Designated Outdoor Refreshment Area comprised of the 
area as depicted on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof, such 
area to include and encompass the premises of the permit holders located at 



 

6801682v1 2 

the street addresses listed on Exhibit “A”, as is required to be included 
pursuant to §4301.82(F)(1)(a). 
 
 SECTION 2.   City Council determines that all public notice requirements 
of ORC §4301.82 prior to the passage of this Resolution have been met. 
 

SECTION 3.   That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after its passage.   
 
 
PASSED:   ___________________, 2017 YEAS______ NAYS______ 

ABSTAIN______ 
 
 

ATTEST:  ________________________ ____________________________ 
     CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  

 
 

 

APPLICATION TO THE DELAWARE CITY 

COUNCIL: 

DOWNTOWN DELAWARE DESIGNATED 

OUTDOOR REFRESHMENT AREA 
O.R.C. 4301.82 

            
The Office of the City Manager of the City of Delaware, Ohio, respectfully submits the 

following application to the Delaware City Council to approve and enact the Downtown 

Delaware Designated Outdoor Refreshment Area, in accordance to O.R.C. 4301.82. 

 

        Submitted 

       By: _______________________________ 

              R. Thomas Homan, City Manager  



 
 

2 

Table of Contents       Page 
 

1. Introduction and Submittal of Application       3 
 

2. Boundaries            4  
 
3. Nature of Establishments         5-8 
 
4. Qualifying Permit Holders        9-10 
 
5. Land Use & Zoning          11 
 
6. Public Health and Safety          12 
 
7. Signage             13 
 
8. Qualifying Special Events         14 

 
  



 

 
 

3 

I. INTRODUCTION AND SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION  
 
Effective April 30, 2017, Section 4301.82 of the Ohio Revised Code authorizes 
municipalities under 35,000 in population to create Designated Outdoor Refreshment 
Areas or “DORA’s”.  In order to consider creation of DORA, the City Manager must file an 
application with the City of Delaware City Council which meet certain statutory 
requirements.  The application filing must be advertised once per week for two 
consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation.  Not earlier than 30 days, but 
not later than 60 days after the initial publication of the notice, City Council may 
approve or disapprove of the application by ordinance or resolution.   
 
At its meeting on May 22, 2017, members of City Council directed staff to prepare the 
application for a DORA for downtown Delaware that includes Sandusky Street from 
Spring Street to Central Avenue and on William and Winter Streets from Franklin Street 
to Union Street that it could be brought before City Council for formal action.   
 
Therefore, the following application is being respectfully submitted to City Council for 
their consideration.  The application is for special events only.  Host entities of the 
various Special Events in the downtown will have to apply for a permit to hold an event 
downtown and then their plan for the DORA, Health and Safety will be reviewed and 
approved by staff. 
The application includes the following: 
 
Section II. A creation of a DORA on Sandusky Street from Spring Street to 

Central Avenue and on William and Winter Streets from Franklin 
Street to Union Street.     

 
Section III. A comprehensive list of all first floor businesses located in the 

proposed DORA district and a general description of their business 
 
Section IV. A list of all liquor permit holders in the proposed DORA district.  The 

ORC requires a minimum of four.  Staff has identified 21 in the 
proposed DORA district. 

 
Section V.  A land use and zoning map of the proposed DORA district. 
 
Section VI.  The Public Health and Safety Plan that will be implemented in the 

DORA district. 
 
Section VII.  A list of Special Events that have taken place in the proposed DORA 

district that are to be considered by City Council to determine if the 
DORA district will be permitted to be used by the host entities. 

 
Section VIII.  A preliminary design of the signs that will be placed at the DORA 

district boundaries during times the DORA is enacted.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

4 

 
 

II. BOUNDARIES 

In accordance to O.R.C. 4301.82(B)(1)(b), the boundaries of the DORA are 
depicted below: 
 

 
The proposed DORA district is north/ south Sandusky Street from Spring Street 
(the north side of Spring Street only) to Central Avenue and east/ west William 
and Winter Streets from Franklin Street to Union Street.  
 

 
  



 

 
 

5 

III. NATURE OF ESTABLISHMENTS 

In accordance with O.R.C. 4301.82(B)(2), the nature and types of establishments 
that will be located within the DORA are listed below. 
The types of establishments located within or adjacent to the DORA district are 
primarily businesses in the retail, dining, entertainment or services sectors. 
Examples of businesses on the first floor include: 
 

Establishment Name Address 

Retail 

Olivina Taproom 44 S. Sandusky St. 
Real Big Puppy 28B S. Sandusky St. 
Roys Toys 26 S. Sandusky St. 
The Stash House 24 S. Sandusky St. 
Breakaway Cycling 17 W. William St. 
Sherwin Williams 27 W. William St. 
DPS Antiques 17 N. Sandusky St. 
Edwin Loy Home/Stone & Sparrow 
Apparel 

27 N. Sandusky St. 

The Beauty Lab 37 N. Sandusky St. 
Pat’s Endangered Species Records 11 W. Winter St. 
Pure-n-Simple 23 W. Winter St. 
Gibson the Florist 19 W. Winter St. 
Fundamentals 25 W. Winter St. 
Secret Identity Comics 34 N. Franklin St. 
Neuhart Carts & Sports Collectibles 26 W. Winter St. 
Coffeeology 43 N. Sandusky St. 
Delaware Diamonds 49 N. Sandusky St. 
Gameplay Unlimited & More 77 N. Sandusky St. 
BP 17 E. William St. 
Virgin/Boost Mobile 46 E. Winter St. 
Woodland Cigar Company 46 N. Sandusky St. 
Sandusky Street Antiques 30 N. Sandusky St. 
Second Sole Athletic Shoes 28 N. Sandusky St. 
Delaware Antique Mall 18 N. Sandusky St. 
The Greater Gouda 12 N. Sandusky St. 
The Bare Bowl 6 N. Sandusky St. 
Toujours  8 N. Sandusky St. 
Choffey’s Coffee & Confections 17 W. Winter St. 

Dining and Adult Beverages  
Vito’s Wine Bar 30 S. Sandusky St. 
Clancey’s 40 S. Sandusky St. 
Opa Pub & Grill 18 S. Sandusky St. 
Flying Pig Alehouse 12 S. Sandusky St. 



 
 

6 

Subway 16 S. Sandusky St. 
The Backstretch 14 S. Sandusky St. 
Amato’s Woodfired Pizza 6 S. Sandusky St. 
12 West 12 W. William St. 
Barley Hopsters 1 N. Sandusky St.  
J. Gumbo’s 9 N. Sandusky St. 
Mohio Pizza 23 N. Sandusky St. 
Whit’s Frozen Custard 31 N. Sandusky St. 
Staas Brewing Company 31 W. Winter St. 
Son of Thurman 5 N. Sandusky St. 
Restoration Brew Worx 25 N. Sandusky St. 
Bun’s 14 W. Winter St. 
Jimmy John’s 47 N. Sandusky St. 
Chelley Belly 59 N. Sandusky St. 
Roops Brothers Bar 17 N. Union St. 
1808 American Bistro 29 E. Winter St. 
Mi Cerrito 19 E. Winter St. 
Veritas 15 E. Winter St. 
Old Bag of Nails 66 N. Sandusky St. 
Fresh Start Café & Bakery 24 N. Sandusky St. 
Hamburger Inn 16 N. Sandusky St. 
Typhoon Asian Fusion Bistro 10 N. Sandusky St. 
Solar Saloon* 2 N. Sandusky St. 
Home Slice’s Bakery & Café  2 N. Sandusky St. 
                                                                   Services 
Ace Cash Express 19 S. Sandusky St. 
Sandusky Street Barber 28 S. Sandusky St. #A 
The Upper Cut Barber Shop 9 E. William St. 
Woody’s Head Shed 10 S. Sandusky St. 
1820 Collective 18 W. William St. 
Lawrence Law Office 24 W. William St. 
St. Mark’s Lutheran Church 28 E. William St.  
RE/MAX Allegiance 11 N. Sandusky St. 
Workman Law Firm 35 N. Sandusky St. 
Delaware General Health District 3 W. Winter St. 
Periwinkle Photography 15 ½ W. Winter St. 
Firestone Brehm Hanson Wolf Real 
Estate Attorneys 

15 W. Winter St. 

Edward Jones Investments 15 N. Sandusky St. 
Title First Agency 13 N. Sandusky St. 
Delaware County Board of Realtors 21 N. Sandusky St. 
The Hair Studio 33 N. Sandusky St. 
The Law Office of Brian Jones 35 N. Sandusky St. 
Workman Law Firm 35 N. Sandusky St. 



 

 
 

7 

First Commonwealth Bank 41 N. Sandusky St. 
Cross Strings 11 ½ W. Winter St. 
Back Door Hair Designs 11 W. Winter St. 
Robinson Funeral Home 32 W. Winter St. 
Martin Shoe Repair 28 W. Winter St. 
Allstate Insurance 51 N. Sandusky St. 
Chase Bank 61 N. Sandusky St. 
iforce Staffing 67 N. Sandusky St. 
Emergency Bail Bonds 73 N. Sandusky St. 
Kendrick Law Office 79 N. Sandusky St. 
Fifth Third Securities 15 W. Central Ave. #105 
Vatsures & Vatsures Attorneys at Law 15 W. Central Ave. #205 
McCoy Law 25 W. Central Ave. 
Gordon Law Office 82 N. Franklin St. 
Northpoint Financial 4 W. Winter St. 
Evolve Bank & Trust 51 N. Sandusky St. 
Smudz Insurance Group 55 N. Sandusky St. 
Razor’s Edge Barber Shop 71 N. Sandusky St. 
Jontaar Creative Studios LLC 81 N. Sandusky St. 
Equity Resources 15 W. Central Ave. #101 
PVS Corporation 15 W. Central Ave. #203 
Delaware Counseling Services 21 W. Central Ave. 
Barnes & Co. Certified Public 
Accountants 

15 W. Central Ave. #201 

Massage Therapy Innovation, LLC 58 N. Franklin St. 
Spa retreat 56 N. Franklin St. 
Law Office of Douglas W. Warnock Co. 20 E. Central Ave. 
Law office of Agee, Clymer, Mitchell & 
Laret 

20 E. Central Ave. 

Leroy’s Service Center 40 E. Central Ave. 
Tiger Lee’s Martial Arts Studio 53 N. Union St. 
Amanda Plumbing Sewer & Drain 39 E. William St. 
Adecco Staffing 45 E. Winter St. 
American Family Insurance 44 E. Winter St. 
Dumbaugh Insurance 13 E. Winter St. 
State Farm Insurance 7 E. Winter St. 
PNC Bank 40 N. Sandusky St. 
Pyramid Health Services 9 E. Winter St. 
Hilborn Insurance 42 N. Sandusky St. 
OneMain Financial 44 N. Sandusky St. 
Owens Law Office 46 N. Sandusky St. 
Manos, Martin & Pergram Co., LPA 50 N. Sandusky St. 
Howard Hanna 52 N Sandusky St. 
Fidelity Federal Savings & Loan 60 N. Sandusky St. 



 
 

8 

Price Realty 68 N. Sandusky St. 
Delaware Vision Care 34 N. Sandusky St. 
Green Door Salon 4 N. Sandusky St.  

Entertainment 
The Strand Theatre 28 E. Winter St. 

Other 
  
Delaware City Hall 1 S. Sandusky St. 
Colony House 21 S. Sandusky St.  
Delaware County Convention & Visitors 
Bureau 

34 S. Sandusky St. 

Delaware Area Chamber of Commerce 32 S. Sandusky St. 
William Street Methodist Church 28 W. William St. 
Sunrise Dwellings II Inc. 30 N. Franklin St. 
Knights of Pythias 9 W. Winter St. 
Creative Foundations 57 N. Sandusky St. 
Delaware Moose Lodge 1167 80 N. Sandusky St. 
Central Ohio Symphony 24 E. Winter St. 
Gallery 22 22 E. Winter St. 
Main Street Delaware, Inc. 20 E. Winter St.  
Delaware County Republican 
Headquarters 

48 N. Sandusky St. 

St. Mark’s Evangelical Lutheran Church 28 E. William St. 
 
*The Solar Saloon is the only second floor establishment listed because it has a 
liquor permit 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

9 

 
IV. QUALIFYING PERMIT HOLDERS 

 
In accordance to O.R.C. 4301.82(B)(3), the DORA will encompass not fewer than 
four qualified permit holders. 
 
Delaware has identified 21 qualified permit holders that will likely be included 
in the DORA:  
 

Permit 
Number 

Business 
Name 

DBA Class Street Address 

04510260001 BARLEY 
HOPSTERS 
LLC 

Barley Hopsters & 
Patio 

D5 1 N. Sandusky St. 

9133496 TYPHOON 
ASIAN 
FUSION 
BISTRO INC 

Typhoon Asian Bistro D5, D6 10  N. Sandusky St. 
Unit 100 BSMT & 
Patio 

2791900 FLYING PIG 
ALE HOUSE 
LLC 

The Flying Pig 
Alehouse 

D5 12 S. Sandusky St. 

0264226 ARKASA INC Bun’s Restaurant & 
Bakery 

D5, D6 12-14 W. Winter St. 
& Patio 

6272704 MEYERS 
STRETCH INC 

The Backstretch and 
Patio 

D1, D2, 
D3, D3A 

14 S. Sandusky St. 

3746533 EVA LLC Vina Veritas Tavern D5, D6 15 E. Winter St. 
5531553 MARIA FOOD 

SERVICE LLC 
Opa Pub & Grill  D1, D2, 

D3 
18 S. Sandusky St. 

4949246 LA CABANA 
MEXICAN 
RESTAURANT 
LLC 

Mi Cerrito Mexican 
Restaurant 

D5, D6 
(pending) 

19 E. Winter St. 1st 
FLR ONLY 

9115185 12 WEST LLC 12 West D5, D6 12 W. William St.  
8837576 DONALD C 

TEMPLE 
Solar Saloon D5, D6 

(Pending) 
2 1/2 N. Sandusky 
St. 

6082470 MOHIO PIZZA 
CO LLC 

Mohio Pizza D5 23 N. Sandusky St. 

2847816 FOUR FAT BS 
LLC 

Restoration Brew Worx A1A, A1C, 
D6 

25 N. Sandusky St. & 
Patio 

8633304 STRAND 
THEATRE & 
CULTURAL 
ARTS ASSN 
INC 

Strand Theatre D1, D3 26-28 E. Winter St. 



 
 

10 

1890265 DELSTEAK 
LLC 

1808 American Bistro 
& Patio 

D1, D2, 
D3, D3A, 
D6 

29 E. Winter St. 1st  
FL & BSMT 

9289273 VITOS WINE 
BAR LLC 

Vito's Wine Bar, LLC D1, D2, 
D3 

30 S. Sandusky St. 

8371348 SOLZA INC Clancy's Pub   40 S. Sandusky St. 
6539109 OLIVINA 

TAPROOM 
LLC 

Olivina Taproom C2, D6 
(pending) 

44 S. Sandusky St. 

2111192 DEVOL 
HOLDINGS 
LLC 

Son of Thurman D1, D2, 
D3, D6 
(pending) 

5 N. Sandusky St. 

71155910020 MICHAEL R 
PURDUM 

Old Bag of Nails D5, D6 66 N. Sandusky St. & 
Patio 

8003650 740 GROUP 
LLC 

 
Amato’s Woodfired 
Pizza 

D1, D2, 
D3, D6 
(pending) 

6-8 S. Sandusky St. 
1st  FL & Patio ONLY 

52849751167 LOOM 
LODGE1167 
DELAWARE 

Moose Lodge D4, D6 80 N. Sandusky St. 

 
 
In accordance with O.R.C. 4301.82(F)(1)©, the hours of operation for the DORA district are: 
 
 

Day Start Time End Time 
Monday 9:00 a.m. 10:00 p.m. 
Tuesday 9:00 a.m. 10:00 p.m. 

Wednesday 9:00 a.m. 10:00 p.m. 
Thursday 9:00 a.m. 10:00 p.m. 

Friday 9:00 a.m. 11:00 p.m. 
Saturday 9:00 a.m. 11:00 p.m. 
Sunday Noon 10:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 
 

11 

V. LAND USE & ZONING 
 
In accordance to O.R.C. 4301.82(B)(4), the uses of land within DORA are zoned 
B-2 (Central Business District) or B-3 (Community Business District) and are in 
accord with the City of Delaware’s master zoning plan: 
 

Zoning Districts 

 
 

 



 
 

12 

 
VI. PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFETY 

The City of Delaware seeks to use a DORA district in its historic downtown for 
special events only.  All host entities for special events are required to develop 
and submit for approval a public health and safety plan along with their 
special event application.  The proposed plan is reviewed by City staff and 
others with interest along with the host entity.  Only once the plan is agreed 
upon and all stipulations met, will a permit be issued.   
 
City staff will ensure that adequate sanitation, signage and public safety 
requirements are met for each unique event.  The necessity for portable 
bathrooms, handicap accessibility, pedestrian mobility, police fire and 
emergency ingress and egress, crowd control, DORA boundary management 
and sanitation management will be addressed.  Event organizers will be 
required to pay for special duty officers or overtime for public service or 
safety workers if necessary to ensure adequate health, public and safety 
requirements. 
 
It is the City’s intent that only wine and beer may be carried through a DORA 
quadrant. 
 
The Chief of Police will dictate at DORA events the need for additional police 
officers, at the expense of the host entity and what containers and their 
markings will be for anyone serving during a DORA event.    
 

  



 

 
 

13 

VII. SIGNAGE 
In order to clearly mark the boundaries of the DORA district, signs similar to 
the design below will be placed at the boundaries for the special event.  The 
location and number of signs will be determined by the City Staff through the 
Special Events permitting process. 
 
Signage Example: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

14 

 
VIII. QUALIFYING SPECIAL EVENTS 

 
DORA district Special Events may include, but are not limited to the following: 
 

Special Event Date Host Host Response 
New Moon Half 
Marathon 

May Greenswell Yes 

Classic Car Show July Performance Auto Maybe in 2018 
 
*Inclusion as an eligible DORA event does not necessitate participation.  Each host organization will have 
the opportunity to decide if the event will participate in the DORA process.  The decision of whether or 
not to participate will be made at the time of completing the Special Events Application. 
 
The City of Delaware staff may consider approval of additional events on a continual 
basis.  Additional events will be subject to local permitting processes and regulated by 
the approved boundaries and hours of operation established in this ordinance. 

 
 



 
 

 

Executive Summary 

Designated Outdoor Refreshment Areas “DORA” 

• In April of 2017, the ORC allowed municipalities under a population of 35,000 to apply to the 
State to create a DORA. 

• At the City Council meeting on May 22, 2017, Council directed staff to complete a DORA 
application per Section 4301.82 of the ORC. 

• The filing of the application must be advertised once per week for two consecutive weeks in a 
newspaper of general circulation.  Not earlier than 30 days, but not later than 60 days after the 
initial publication of the notice, City Council may approve or disapprove of the application by 
ordinance or resolution.   

Therefore, staff has proposed the following conditions for the DORA application: 

1) The boundaries for the DORA would be Sandusky Street from Spring Street to Central Avenue 
and on William and Winter Streets from Franklin Street to Union Street.     
 

2) It can only be implemented during a properly permitted Special Event which would include: 
 

a. Specific times for the DORA to be in effect not to exceed the application limitations 
b. City ratified public safety and sanitation plans, which will be event specific 

i. This includes costs that will be passed onto the event hosts, based on necessity 
 

3) Specially marked cups will be used by the qualifying liquor permit holders 
a. The design of these cups will be determined by the City 
b. Only wine and beer may be served in the cups to leave the establishment  
c. Participation in the DORA program is optional to the liquor permit holders 

 

4) Each special event host organization will have the option to participate in the DORA.   The 
decision of whether or not to participate will be made at the time of completing the Special 
Events Application. 

a. The City of Delaware staff may consider approval of additional events on a continual 
basis.  Additional events will be subject to local permitting processes and regulated by 
the approved boundaries and hours of operation established by the DORA application. 
 

5) Alcohol service must take place in the liquor permit holders establishment.  If a host organizer 
decides to include a beer truck or any conveyance of that fashion, then the host must follow the 
regulations as it pertains to that conveyance (i.e. proper fencing) 
 

 



September 22, 2017 
 
 
 
 
Dear Council Members, 
 
Main Street Delaware appreciates its strong partnership with the City of 
Delaware in our combined efforts to preserve, promote, and protect the historic 
downtown.  
 
In a recent survey of our membership, we discovered that a majority of the 
downtown businesses favored a DORA during certain special events. 
Additionally, in an open poll to the community that is currently ongoing, 57% of 
responses say they would attend an event that utilized DORA and was 
sponsored by Main Street Delaware.  
 
Main Street Delaware is still exploring how and when we may use the DORA, but 
we support the City's proactive effort to enact an event-specific DORA to provide 
this opportunity to qualified community groups. 
 
Much appreciation, 
 
 
The Main Street Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 

 

-Giving People a Vibrant Downtown Experience- 
 















From: Kim Gepper
To: City Council Email
Cc: R Thomas Homan; Jackie Walker; Dean Stelzer; David M. Efland; Darren Shulman
Subject: FW: DORA FB Message
Date: Friday, September 29, 2017 10:10:00 AM

All:
 
Please see the message regarding the DORA that Kelsey found on facebook this morning. 
 
 
Good morning CMO!
 
Hope you’re enjoying your morning. Since I’m playing Lee for the week, I wanted to pass along a
message we got from who I’m assuming is a resident regarding DORA. I promised her I’d send it to
you!
 

Kathi Snyder PaullinView Profile
Actions

WED 10:20AM

DORA is NOT a good idea. For one thing, policing it to enforce times and boundaries is impossible. (i.e., keeping cyclists off
downtown sidewalks is not working). But MORE important is the example it sets for our children! The only ones who benefit
from DORA are those who sell liquor. People will attend these big events without needing a drink in hand! PLEASE consider
the message DORA sends to our youth!!!!!

THU 7:04PM

City of Delaware, Ohio - Government
Hi Kathi, we appreciate your message. We will be sure to pass along your comment to the City Manager's office as well as City
Council. Have a great evening!
Sent by Kelsey Miller Scott

Please do!!!! Thank you!

 
 
Have a fabulous Friday,
 
Kelsey
 
Kelsey Scott
Economic Development Specialist
and Business Concierge
City of Delaware

mailto:/O=CITY OF DELAWARE/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=KIM GEPPER085
mailto:CityCouncilEmail@delawareohio.net
mailto:rthoman@delawareohio.net
mailto:jwalker@delawareohio.net
mailto:dstelzer@delawareohio.net
mailto:defland@delawareohio.net
mailto:DShulman@delawareohio.net
https://www.facebook.com/kathi.paullin?fref=ufi
https://www.facebook.com/CityofDelaware/messages/?threadid=1285934767&timestamp=1506641786056
https://www.facebook.com/kelsey.miller.980


www.delawaremeansbusiness.com
740-203-1018
 
 

This message may contain confidential and/or proprietary information and is intended for the person/entity to whom it was originally
addressed. Any use by others is strictly prohibited.

 

This message may contain confidential and/or proprietary information and is intended for the person/entity to whom it was originally
addressed. Any use by others is strictly prohibited.

This message may contain confidential and/or proprietary information and is intended for the person/entity to whom it was originally
addressed. Any use by others is strictly prohibited.

https://mail.delawareohio.net/owa/redir.aspx?SURL=-43Tocsp5jR9ILtY6wA-q9_8Zyyc-uJdKm4-WBbiq8pOc7ujVZ_TCGgAdAB0AHAAOgAvAC8AdwB3AHcALgBkAGUAbABhAHcAYQByAGUAbwBoAGkAbwAuAG4AZQB0AC8A&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.delawareohio.net%2f


  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 10/09/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-62    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Mayor Carolyn Kay Riggle 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE 
CITY MANAGER. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Increase included in the 2017 Budget 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Mayor Carolyn Kay Riggle 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Draft agreement 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-62 
  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE EMPLOYMENT 
AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY MANAGER. 

  
WHEREAS, the employment agreement with the City Manager provides 

that the compensation of the City Manager shall be reviewed, and 
  

WHEREAS, the Council has reviewed the salary and benefits of the City 
Manager and has made the necessary changes to the employment agreement 
(attached).  

  
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
  

SECTION 1.  An employment agreement reflecting the agreed upon 
changes is authorized to be executed by the City Manager and the Mayor, 
representing City Council. 

  
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 

 



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

The Council of the City of Delaware, Ohio, hereinafter referred to as “City” or 
“City Council” has offered the position of City Manager to R. Thomas Homan, 
and Mr. Homan, hereinafter referred to as “Manager” or “Mr. Homan” has 
accepted the offer of employment under the following terms agreeable to both 
parties. 

 
1. Beginning with the date of employment, the City will compensated Mr. 

Homan as City Manager of Delaware and Mr. Homan will execute all the 
duties and responsibilities of City Manager set forth in the Delaware City 
Charter, Code of Ordinances and requirements of the City Council. 

 
2. The Manager’s salary will be at the hourly rate of $66.22 $68.20 effective 

February 2, 2016 2017. This represents an increase of approximately 2 
3% over the 2015 2016 salary. 

 

3. The Council and Mr. Homan will establish annual performance goals and 
objectives. Any pay increases during Mr. Homan’s tenure with the City 
will be based upon performance evaluations. Evaluations are anticipated 
every six months following Mr. Homan’s date of employment. One six- 
month evaluation may be primarily for discussion of the City Manager’s 
past performance and performance planning, while the alternate 
evaluation may be concerned primarily with matters of compensation for 
the City Manager. The method of evaluation will be formulated by the 
Council and Mr. Homan and conducted by the Council. 

 
4. Mr. Homan will serve as City Manager at the will of the City Council and 

nothing herein will be taken to suggest or imply guaranteed tenure. 
 
5. In the event the City terminates the services of Mr. Homan or requests 

his resignation at any time without cause, the City will pay to Mr. Homan 
a lump sum severance payment equal to ninety (90) days base salary and 
benefits, payable not later than the next regular pay date. No such lump 
sum severance payment will be paid upon a termination for cause. All 
accrued vacation, holiday, compensatory time, one-half the value of sick 
leave, other accrued benefits, retirement and group health insurance 
benefits will be paid to Mr. Homan at the same time, calculated at the 
rate of pay or benefit in effect upon notice of termination. The Manager 
will provide the City not less than 30 days written notice of his intent to 
resign his position wholly voluntarily, whereupon the Manager 
understands that he will not receive the lump sum severance payment 
equal to ninety (90) days base salary and benefits described above. All 
accrued vacation, holiday, compensatory time, one-half the value of sick 
leave, other accrued benefits, retirement and group health insurance 



benefits will be paid to the date of termination and calculated at the rate 
of pay or benefit in effect upon notice of termination. 

 
6. The Manager will remain a resident of the City during employment. 

 
7. The City will pay to the Manager an automobile allowance of $600.00 per 

month for the use of the Manager’s personal vehicle for City business, 
without requiring mileage records or expense receipts. In the event the 
City Manager uses a city vehicle for travel, the automobile allowance for 
the following month will be prorated based on the number of days a city 
vehicle is used. It is the City Manager’s responsibility to track this 
information. The allowance will be paid on the same schedule as payroll 
for other City employees. Mileage may be reimbursed to the Manager for 
travel on behalf of the City beyond a 100-mile radius of Delaware. The 
City manager may elect to convert the automobile allowance into the 
base pay in a cost neutral manner. 

 
8. The City will pay the expense of a mobile telephone for the Manager. 

 
9. The City will provide the Manager paid coverage for health, dental and 

prescription benefits in terms and amounts provided other employees of 
the City generally, effective upon the first day of the month following his 
date of employment. 

 
10. The City will provide the Manager paid annual vacation earned at the 

rate of 25 working days per year. Any use of vacation leave credits by 
the Manager will be following written notice to the Council. The City will 
pay for all accrued and unused vacation days to Mr. Homan upon 
separation from the City employment, for any reason, at his then current 
rate of pay. 

 
11. The Manager will be permitted to engage in occasional teaching, writing, 

speaking or consulting performed on his time off, even if outside 
compensation is provided for such services, provided that, in no case, is 
any activity permitted which would present a conflict of interest with the 
City of Delaware. In the event that over night travel is required for such 
non-City business, the City Council will be notified in advance. 

 
12. The City will provide Mr. Homan four (4) personal days per anniversary 

year for personal business, credited at the beginning of each subsequent 
year. Upon termination from the City for any reason, accrued personal 
days will not be compensated. 

 
13. The City will provide Mr. Homan paid sick leave in the amounts earned 

at a rate of 4.6 hours for each completed 80 hours of service. The City 
will pay for one-half the value of unused sick leave to Mr. Homan upon 



separation from the City employment for any reason, at his then current 
rate of pay. 

 
14. The City will provide fully paid coverage for Mr. Homan of workers 

compensation and unemployment compensation insurance from his first 
date of employment. 

 
15. The City will afford Mr. Homan paid funeral leave in the amounts 

provided for all other City employees generally, upon his attendance at 
the funeral or memorial observance of any member of his family in the 
first degree of sanguinity, and of his spouse and parents-in-law. 

 
16. The City will provide Mr. Homan group life insurance from his date of 

employment in the amount of $125,000 with double indemnity for 
accidental death or dismemberment. 

 
17. The City will pay Mr. Homan the monthly amount of $131.67 toward the 

premium expense for long term disability insurance. 
 
18. The City will provide Mr. Homan paid holiday leave on the same annual 

schedule as that provided for other City employees generally. 
 
19. The City will pay the expense of Mr. Homan’s membership in ICMA and 

OCMA and for his attendance at national and state conferences, within 
an amount budgeted each year. 

 
20. The City will anticipate a recommendation from Mr. Homan for inclusion 

in each annual budget amounts to be used at Mr. Homan’s discretion 
for: 

 
a. Educational courses, conferences and workshops directly related 

to Mr. Homan’s work as City Manager, including expenses directly 
related to his attendance at such educational programs. 

b. Membership dues and subscriptions for Mr. Homan’s involvement 
in professional organizations that are directly in the interest of the 
City and Mr. Homan’s performance on behalf of the City. 

c. Routine business expenses of the City Manager directly related to 
his performance of official duties. The City Manager’s membership 
in Rotary requires him to purchase lunches at meetings, and his 
salary has been increased (already reflected in wages) to reflect 
that expense. 

 
21. Effective December 21, 2011, the City increased Mr. Homan’s base salary 

by 7.3% to reflect the fact that the City no longer pays the City Manager’s 
share of the PERS premium. 



22. On the pay period that includes February 2, 20167, the City will 
contribute the sum of 5.5% of the base salary earned from February 2,  
20156 to February 2, 20167, the City will contribute the sum of 5.5% 
of Mr. Homan’s base salary earned during the prior year (February 2, 
20156 to February 2,  20167) to the ICMA-RC investment program. In 
the event the City Manager separates from service before the year is 
complete, this contribution will be prorated to reflect the period of 
employment of the City Manager and made upon separation. 

 
23. The City will indemnify and hold harmless Mr. Homan from liability for 

any claims, demands or judgments arising out of an act or omission 
occurring in the lawful performance of his duties as City Manager. The 
City will pay the cost of any fidelity or other bonds required of Mr. 
Homan by the City Charter, City Ordinances or Ohio statues. 

 
24. All other provisions of City ordinances, regulations or rules relating to 

personnel matters of non-union employees of the City and terms of the 
Management Pay Plan, not contrary to the terms listed in this 
memorandum or to the City Charter, will also apply to Mr. Homan during 
his employment as City Manager. 

 
25. Mr. Homan’s initial date of employment is February 2, 1999.  Starting 

with 2018, the effective date for Mr. Homan’s compensation will 
coincide with the effective date of the Management Pay Plan.  

 
26. Any portion of this memorandum in conflict with the City Charter or any 

State, or Federal law, will be considered null and void. The remaining 
provisions of this agreement will remain in full force and effect. The law 
of the State of Ohio will govern the interpretation of this agreement. 

 
27. The City and Mr. Homan agree that this Agreement accurately reflects 

the terms of employment for the City Manager position offered by the 
City and accepted by Mr. Homan. 

 
28. Unless otherwise stated, the terms of this Agreement shall be retroactive 

to February 2, 20167. 



 

The parties have evidenced their agreement by affixing their signatures below 
this day of____, 20176. 

 
 
Council of the City of Delaware, Ohio City Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Carolyn Kay Riggle, Mayor R. Thomas Homan 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 

 
 
 

 

Darren Shulman 
City Attorney 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 10/09/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO:  17-59 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
        
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:   
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION OF COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABLE2050. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
Sustainable2050 is the successor the Green Pact, which the City has been a 
member of since July 2011.  In June of 2017, the MORPC Commission 
approved the new format of the Program.  Sustainable2050 will have its debut 
at the Summit on Sustainability on November 14th.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
The resolution authorizes the city to be part of MORPC Sustainable2050 
program. In order for all of the existing Green Pact members to be featured in 
the Summit on Sustainability presentation a formal commitment is needed to 
be made to Sustainable2050 through the adoption of the resolution.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  
None 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 



PRESENTER(S):  
Caroline Cicerchi, Watershed/Sustainability Coordinator 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)  



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-59 
 

A RESOLUTION OF COMMITMENT TO 
SUSTAINABLE2050. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) is a 
voluntary association of Central Ohio governments and regional organizations 
that provides valuable community services related to transportation, housing, 
policy, and sustainability; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware is a member of MORPC and represented 
on its Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, MORPC’s top level Sustainability Advisory Committee has 
developed the Regional Sustainability Agenda which provides a framework for 
members and regional partners to work toward common goals; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has been a Green Pact member and 
worked cooperatively with Central Ohio communities since July 2011 to carry 
out the initiatives identified in the Green Pact and its associated principles; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Delaware is committed to protecting and 
preserving its natural resources and pursuing initiatives that will have positive 
impact on its environment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware recognizes its ability as a local 

government to lead and influence sustainable practices within the community 
in a way that is both fiscally and environmentally responsible; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware understands that MORPC is committed 

to providing additional technical and programmatic support to those committed 
to the Sustainable2050 program. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF DELAWARE, DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO: 
 
 SECTION 1.   The City of Delaware commits to Sustainable2050 
(“Program”) and will pursue the objectives and initiatives outlined in the 
Program. 
 
 SECTION 2.   The City of Delaware will designate a local champion to 
ensure public awareness of, and active participation in, the Program. 
 

SECTION 3.   The City of Delaware will assign a representative to 
participate in Program meetings.   



 

6801682v1 2 

 
SECTION 4.  The City of Delaware will share data with MORPC, as related 

to the goals and objectives of the Program. 
 
SECTION 5.   That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage.   
 
 
PASSED:   ___________________, 2017 YEAS______ NAYS______ 

ABSTAIN______ 
 
 

ATTEST:  ________________________ ____________________________ 
     CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  15    DATE: 10/09/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-64    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       October 23, 2017 at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE AMENDMENT TO PETITION FOR 
EXPANSION OF THE NORTHERN NEW COMMUNITY AUTHORITY AND MAKE 
RELATED FINDINGS, PROVIDE THE METHOD OF SELECTING THE BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES OF THE NEW COMMUNITY AUTHORITY, AND DEFINE THE 
BOUNDARY OF THE EXPANDED NEW COMMUNITY DISTRICT. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The North New Community Authority (North NCA), is existing and consists of 
the Glennwood Commons Shopping Center and the developing apartments.  
The purpose of the North NCA is to first and foremost pay for the Glenn Road 
improvements existing and potentially envisioned down to Curve Rd.  The 
developers of the Quail Pass Apartments (aka Redwood) have previously 
consented to joining the North NCA via execution of a formal Declaration to do 
so.  This enabled the Authority to charge and collect the 7.5 Mills required and 
allowed by Ohio Revised Code (ORC) and the enabling legislation for the North 
NCA.  NCA counsel, and the North NCA Board of which the City is a part, has 
advised that ORC requires taking the final formal steps in the amendment 
process to formally amend the original NCA to include the entirety of the 
apartment area.  This is in accordance with the original vision for the North 
NCA area.  ORC requires a number of formal and prescribed steps in this 
process including accepting the determination of sufficiency herein, advertising 
at proscribed intervals for the pending amendment, a public hearing for the 



amendment, and finally adoption of the amendment itself.  While Staff takes 
care of much as this process, City Council is charged with reviewing and 
approving the Sufficiency Ordinance followed by the Amendment.  Without 
passage of these items, technically the North NCA will not be able to include 
the land originally envisioned and could impact the funding related to Glenn 
Road as a result.  City Council passed at the September 25 meeting the 
Sufficiency Ordinance and established the formal Amendment hearing for 
October 23, 2017. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This follows the prescribed steps as given in the Ohio Revised Code to complete 
the inclusion of the proposed area into the North NCA for the primary purpose 
of funding Glenn Road improvements.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
  
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Amendment to Petition For Organization of a New Community Authority 
Attachment A-1 Map 
 



 

-2- 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-64 

 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE AMENDMENT TO 
PETITION FOR EXPANSION OF THE NORTHERN NEW 
COMMUNITY AUTHORITY AND MAKE RELATED 
FINDINGS, PROVIDE THE METHOD OF SELECTING 
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE NEW 
COMMUNITY AUTHORITY, AND DEFINE THE 
BOUNDARY OF THE EXPANDED NEW COMMUNITY 
DISTRICT. 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 349 of the Ohio Revised Code, on 
October 22, 2007, Zaremba Group, LLC (the “Original Developer”) filed a 
petition (the “Original Petition”) for the establishment of the Northern New 
Community Authority (the “Authority”) with this City Council; and 

WHEREAS, this City Council, as the “organizational board of 
commissioners” as that term is defined in Section 349.01(F) of the Ohio Revised 
Code, passed its Ordinance No. 07-98 on November 12, 2007, determining that 
the Original Petition complied as to form and substance with the requirements 
of Section 349.03(A) of the Ohio Revised Code and fixing the time and place for 
a hearing on the establishment of the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, this City Council passed Ordinance No. 07-103 on December 
10, 2007, determining that the Delaware South New Community District (the 
“District”) would be conducive to the public health, safety, convenience and 
welfare and that it was intended to result in the development of a new 
community as described in Chapter 349 of the Ohio Revised Code, and 
declaring the Authority organized as a body corporate and politic in the State of 
Ohio; and 

WHEREAS, Section 349.03(B) of the Ohio Revised Code authorizes the 
amendment of the Original Petition by filing an application to add land to the 
District at any time after the creation of the Authority, and upon the filing of 
such an application City Council, as the organizational board of 
commissioners, shall follow the same procedure to approve the amendment as 
required by Section 349.03 in relation to the Original Petition; and 

WHEREAS, Delaware Preserve, LLC (the “Developer”) filed an amendment 
to the Petition with the Clerk of this City Council to expand the territory of the 
District as required by Chapter 349.03 of the Ohio Revised Code (the 
“Amendment to Petition”); and 

WHEREAS, this City Council, as the organizational board of 
commissioners, passed Ordinance No. 17-63 on September 25, 2017, 



 

 

determining that the Amendment to Petition complied as to form and 
substance with the requirements of Section 349.03 of the Ohio Revised Code 
and fixing the time and place for a hearing on the Amendment to Petition; and   

WHEREAS, this City Council, as the organizational board of 
commissioners, held a public hearing on the Amendment to Petition on October 
23, 2017, after public notice was duly published in accordance with Section 
349.03(A) of the Ohio Revised Code;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of The City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio, that: 

Section 1. This City Council finds and determines pursuant to Section 
349.03 of the Ohio Revised Code that the expansion of the District as 
contemplated by the Amendment to Petition will be conducive to the public 
health, safety, convenience and welfare, and will be consistent with the 
development of the new community, will not jeopardize the plan of the new 
community, and is intended to result in the development of the new 
community. 

Section 2. The Amendment to Petition is hereby accepted and shall be 
recorded, along with this Ordinance, in the journal of the City Council, as the 
organizational board of commissioners, pursuant to Section 349.03 of the Ohio 
Revised Code. 

Section 3. The District shall be expanded to include the property 
identified in the Amendment to Petition. 

Section 4. That the Board of Trustees of the Authority shall be 
composed of seven (7) members selected, with three of those members to be 
citizen members appointed by this Council, three members to be appointed by 
the Original Developer, and one member to be appointed by this Council to 
serve as a representative of local government.  No elections will be held for 
electing successor Board members.  If the Original Developer does not appoint 
a member for a Board member position within 30 days of written request for 
such appointment by the City, this Council may appoint a Board member to fill 
that position. 

Section 5. This City Council finds and determines that all formal 
actions of the City Council concerning and relating to the passage of this 
Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this City Council and that all 
deliberations of this City Council and of any committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public in compliance with the law, 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

Section 6. This Ordinance is declared to be in full force and effect from 
and after the earliest period allowed by law. 



 

 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED:  , 2017  YEAS _____ NAYS _____ 
  ABSTAIN _____ 
 
 
ATTEST:      
 CITY CLERK   MAYOR 
 

 
 
 



































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 16    DATE: 10/09/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-65    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Sean Hughes, Economic Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA AGREEMENT 
AND SCHOOL COMPENSATION AGREEMENT WITH KB42, LTD., DELAWARE CITY 
SCHOOLS, DELAWARE AREA CAREER CENTER AND THE CITY OF DELAWARE FOR 
INVESTMENT IN REAL PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS ON A BUILDING AT 42 NORTH 
SANDUSKY STREET AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
We are requesting City Council’s approval for the City Manager to enter into a 
Community Reinvestment Area (CRA) Tax Incentive Agreement and School 
Compensation Agreement with KB42, LTD., DELAWARE CITY SCHOOLS, DELAWARE 
AREA CAREER CENTER for an $80,000 investment in the second floor of 42 North 
Sandusky St. on Parcel 51943108023000. 
 
Denny Bolton, Managing Partner of KB42, LTD. has submitted application for the 
Community Reinvestment Area Tax Abatement. 
 
The company will be renovating the second floor of the building they purchased at 42 
N. Sandusky St. to house Bolton Insurance Agency. The company has committed to 
hiring 10 FTEs with a payroll of $600,000 within three years of activation of the 
abatement. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
We calculated a 100%/15 year CRA tax abatement would an approximate $29,166.06 
in gross tax savings after 15 years on their $80,000 investment. Due to the abatement 



being for a new payroll of $600,000, a School Compensation Agreement is not required. 
The schools do not necessarily need to approve the CRA even though it is over 50% 
because the total proposed school compensation on improvements combined with 
existing taxes on the building is greater than 50% (in this case, 78%). However, they, as 
part of the Tax Incentive Negotiation Committee, have voted to recommend this 
incentive. They also have waived their notification period of 45 days. 
 
The Tax Incentive Negotiation Committee and Staff are recommending a 100%/15 year 
CRA to assist the company with a company paid School Pilot Payment Agreement 
equaling $483.08 per year or $4,162.50 after 15 years. These pilot payments would be 
divided between DCS and DACC in accordance with their respective tax rates. With the 
recommendations as made, this project would achieve a 659.53% ROI for the City with 
$166,500 in income taxes after 15 years. The schools would achieve a 30% ROI, but also 
would retain the taxes they currently receive on the unimproved building of $3,895.20 
per year or $58,428 after 15 years. With this project, the schools receive 12.4% more in 
tax revenues on the project than they did without the building renovations. 
 
This proposed incentive package provides an opportunity to spur considerable 
investment and continue the upward progress of investment and new businesses in our 
historic downtown. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Tax Incentive Review Council, 9/19/17 
VOTE: Approval  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
COST: N/A 
FUND SOURCES: N/A 
BUDGETED: NO 
 
DEPARTMENTS IMPACTED: Economic Development 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Sean Hughes, Economic Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
CRA School Notification Letters 
Incentives Application 
CRA Agreement 
School Compensation Agreement 
Map Exhibit of Building Location 



 1

ORDINANCE NO. 17-65 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMMUNITY 
REINVESTMENT AREA AGREEMENT AND SCHOOL 
COMPENSATION AGREEMENT WITH KB42, LTD, 
DELAWARE CITY SCHOOLS, DELAWARE AREA 
CAREER CENTER AND THE CITY OF DELAWARE FOR 
INVESTMENT IN REAL PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS 
ON A BUILDING AT 42 NORTH SANDUSKY STREET 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has encouraged development of and 
investment in real property in the area designated as Community Reinvestment 
Area 141-1135-1 pursuant to ORC 3735; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware by Resolution Number 01-52, resolved 
to review and approve all Community Reinvestment Area Agreements which 
meet the statutory guidelines; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware partners with impacted school districts 
to ensure mutual benefit from economic development projects; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Delaware established an economic 
development fund to attract, incentive and assist high return on investment 
projects in the City of Delaware; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF DELAWARE, 
DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO, that: 
 
 SECTION 1. The Community Reinvestment Area Agreement by and 
between the City of Delaware and KB42, LTD meets all of the guidelines 
established by the State of Ohio and the City of Delaware, and the same is 
hereby approved. 
 
 SECTION 2.  The School Compensation Agreement by and between the 
City of Delaware, Delaware City School District and KB42, LTD meets all of the 
school compensation guidelines established by the State of Ohio and the City of 
Delaware, and the same is hereby approved. 
 
 SECTION 3. That the City Council of the City of Delaware hereby 
authorizes the execution of said agreements by the City Manager to implement 
the Community Reinvestment Area Program and School Compensation 
Agreement for this project. 
 
 SECTION 4. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 



 2

of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 SECTION 5. EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public 
peace, safety, health and welfare of the City, and is necessary to finalize 
negotiations, and as such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
  



  

 
 

 
 
 
Sept. 22, 2017 
  
Mary Beth Freeman 
Superintendent 
Delaware Area Career Center 
4565 Columbus Pike 
Delaware, OH 43015 
 
Paul Craft 
Superintendent 
Delaware City Schools 
74 W. William St. 
Delaware, OH 43015 
 
 
RE: KB42, Ltd. Community Reinvestment Area Request for Tax Incentives and School Compensation 
Agreement 
 
Dear Superintendents Craft and Freeman: 
 
In an effort to attract KB42, Ltd. and their office tenant to the City of Delaware, the City of Delaware’s 
Incentive Negotiation Committee, that includes the superintendents and treasurers from the impacted 
school districts, negotiated a 100% for 15 year CRA tax abatement for their potential 2nd floor building 
renovation at 42 N. Sandusky St. on Parcel #51943108023000. As part of the CRA abatement, the 
company has agreed to a School Compensation Agreement with an annual payments to the school 
districts equaling 30% of what the school districts would have seen without the abatement on building 
improvements. The total of payments to both Delaware City Schools and Delaware Area Career Center 
would be $483.08/year for a total of $7,246.25 after fifteen years. 
 
All incentives are based on KB42, Ltd.’s commitment to the creation of 10 new full-time equivalent jobs 
to the City of Delaware with an annual payroll minimum of $600,000 within 3 years of the completion of 
their project. A copy of their application for tax incentives is attached.  
 
CRA (ORC 3735.65-70) guidelines require that Boards of Education be informed of amendments, notice 
requirements, review rights, meeting requests, revenue sharing requirements, and/or program 
participation. Since the CRA legislation and company agreements contain many legal requirements, you 
may want to review Ohio Revised Code references (please see: 
http://onlinedocs.andersonpublishing.com/). 
 



 

The City of Delaware is requesting a waiver of the required 45 business day notice period so that 
Delaware City Council will be able to consider these requests at our regularly scheduled Council meeting 
on June 12, 2017, held at Delaware City Hall, 1 South Sandusky Street, Delaware, at 7:00 P.M.  A second 
reading and public hearing may be scheduled for June 26, 2017, but may not be needed if Council 
chooses to take action on the first reading for economic development purposes. School Board Members, 
staff and the public are welcome to attend these meetings.  Please let me know if you require any 
further assistance. I can be reached at 740.203.1016 or shughes@delawareohio.net. Please email me 
with confirmation of receipt of this notification so that I can send it with our petition to the Ohio 
Development Services Agency. 
 
Yours Sincerely, 
Sean Hughes 
Economic Development Director 
 
xc: Honorable George Kaitsa, Auditor 

R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
Dean Stelzer Finance Director 
Melissa Lee , Treasurer, Delaware City School District 
Chris Bell, Treasurer, Delaware Area Career Center 
Bob Lamb, Delaware County Economic Development Director 

 
  
Attached: 
1. ORC 3735.671 
2. KB42, Ltd.  application for tax incentives 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

mailto:shughes@delawareohio.net


 

 

 

3735.671 Written agreement where commercial or industrial property is to be exempted. 

(A) If construction or remodeling of commercial or industrial property is to be exempted from taxation pursuant to 
section 3735.67 of the Revised Code, the legislative authority and the owner of the property, prior to the 
commencement of construction or remodeling, shall enter into a written agreement, binding on both parties for a 
period of time that does not end prior to the end of the period of the exemption, that includes all of the information 
and statements prescribed by this section. Agreements may include terms not prescribed by this section, but such 
terms shall in no way derogate from the information and statements prescribed by this section. 

(1) Except as otherwise provided in division (A)(2) or (3) of this section, an agreement entered into under this section 
shall not be approved by the legislative authority unless the board of education of the city, local, or exempted village 
school district within the territory of which the property is or will be located approves the agreement. For the 
purpose of obtaining such approval, the legislative authority shall certify a copy of the agreement to the board of 
education not later than forty-five days prior to approving the agreement, excluding Saturday, Sunday, and a legal 
holiday as defined in section 1.14 of the Revised Code. The board of education, by resolution adopted by a majority 
of the board, shall approve or disapprove the agreement and certify a copy of the resolution to the legislative 
authority not later than fourteen days prior to the date stipulated by the legislative authority as the date upon which 
approval of the agreement is to be formally considered by the legislative authority. The board of education may 
include in the resolution conditions under which the board would approve the agreement. The legislative authority 
may approve an agreement at any time after the board of education certifies its resolution approving the agreement 
to the legislative authority, or, if the board approves the agreement conditionally, at any time after the conditions 
are agreed to by the board and the legislative authority. 

(2) Approval of an agreement by the board of education is not required under division (A)(1) of this section if, for 
each tax year the real property is exempted from taxation, the sum of the following quantities, as estimated at or 
prior to the time the agreement is formally approved by the legislative authority, equals or exceeds fifty per cent of 
the amount of taxes, as estimated at or prior to that time, that would have been charged and payable that year upon 
the real property had that property not been exempted from taxation: 

(a) The amount of taxes charged and payable on any portion of the assessed valuation of the new structure or 
remodeling that will not be exempted from taxation under the agreement; 

(b) The amount of taxes charged and payable on tangible personal property located on the premises of the new 
structure or of the structure to be remodeled under the agreement, whether payable by the owner of the structure 
or by a related member, as defined in section 5733.042 of the Revised Code without regard to division (B) of that 
section. 

(c) The amount of any cash payment by the owner of the new structure or structure to be remodeled to the school 
district, the dollar value, as mutually agreed to by the owner and the board of education, of any property or services 
provided by the owner of the property to the school district, whether by gift, loan, or otherwise, and any payment 
by the legislative authority to the school district pursuant to section 5709.82 of the Revised Code. 

http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/3735.67
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/gp1.14
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5733.042
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.82


 

The estimates of quantities used for purposes of division (A)(2) of this section shall be estimated by the legislative 
authority. The legislative authority shall certify to the board of education that the estimates have been made in good 
faith. Departures of the actual quantities from the estimates subsequent to approval of the agreement by the board 
of education do not invalidate the agreement. 

(3) If a board of education has adopted a resolution waiving its right to approve agreements and the resolution 
remains in effect, approval of an agreement by the board is not required under this division. If a board of education 
has adopted a resolution allowing a legislative authority to deliver the notice required under this division fewer than 
forty-five business days prior to the legislative authority's execution of the agreement, the legislative authority shall 
deliver the notice to the board not later than the number of days prior to such execution as prescribed by the board 
in its resolution. If a board of education adopts a resolution waiving its right to approve agreements or shortening 
the notification period, the board shall certify a copy of the resolution to the legislative authority. If the board of 
education rescinds such a resolution, it shall certify notice of the rescission to the legislative authority. 

(B) Each agreement shall include the following information: 

(1) The names of all parties to the agreement; 

(2) A description of the remodeling or construction, whether or not to be exempted from taxation, including existing 
or new structure size and cost thereof; the value of machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures, including an 
itemization of the value of machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures used at another location in this state prior 
to the agreement and relocated or to be relocated from that location to the property, and the value of machinery, 
equipment, furniture, and fixtures at the facility prior to the execution of the agreement; the value of inventory at 
the property, including an itemization of the value of inventory held at another location in this state prior to the 
agreement and relocated or to be relocated from that location to the property, and the value of inventory held at 
the property prior to the execution of the agreement; 

(3) The scheduled starting and completion dates of remodeling or construction of real property or of investments 
made in machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, and inventory; 

(4) Estimates of the number of employee positions to be created each year of the agreement and of the number of 
employee positions retained by the owner due to the remodeling or construction, itemized as to the number of full-
time, part-time, permanent, and temporary positions; 

(5) Estimates of the dollar amount of payroll attributable to the positions set forth in division (B)(4) of this section, 
similarly itemized; 

(6) The number of employee positions, if any, at the property and at any other location in this state at the time the 
agreement is executed, itemized as to the number of full-time, part-time, permanent, and temporary positions. 

(C) Each agreement shall set forth the following information and incorporate the following statements: 

(1) A description of real property to be exempted from taxation under the agreement, the percentage of the 
assessed valuation of the real property exempted from taxation, and the period for which the exemption is granted, 



 

 

accompanied by the statement: "The exemption commences the first year for which the real property would first be 
taxable were that property not exempted from taxation. No exemption shall commence after .......... (insert date) 
nor extend beyond .......... (insert date)." 

(2) ".......... (insert name of owner) shall pay such real property taxes as are not exempted under this agreement and 
are charged against such property and shall file all tax reports and returns as required by law. If .......... (insert name 
of owner) fails to pay such taxes or file such returns and reports, exemptions from taxation granted under this 
agreement are rescinded beginning with the year for which such taxes are charged or such reports or returns are 
required to be filed and thereafter." 

(3) ".......... (insert name of owner) hereby certifies that at the time this agreement is executed, .......... (insert name 
of owner) does not owe any delinquent real or tangible personal property taxes to any taxing authority of the State 
of Ohio, and does not owe delinquent taxes for which .......... (insert name of owner) is liable under Chapter 5733., 
5735., 5739., 5741., 5743., 5747., or 5753. of the Ohio Revised Code, or, if such delinquent taxes are owed, .......... 
(insert name of owner) currently is paying the delinquent taxes pursuant to an undertaking enforceable by the State 
of Ohio or an agent or instrumentality thereof, has filed a petition in bankruptcy under 11 U.S.C.A. 101 , et seq., or 
such a petition has been filed against .......... (insert name of owner). For the purposes of this certification, delinquent 
taxes are taxes that remain unpaid on the latest day prescribed for payment without penalty under the chapter of 
the Revised Code governing payment of those taxes." 

(4) ".......... (insert name of municipal corporation or county) shall perform such acts as are reasonably necessary or 
appropriate to effect, claim, reserve, and maintain exemptions from taxation granted under this agreement 
including, without limitation, joining in the execution of all documentation and providing any necessary certificates 
required in connection with such exemptions." 

(5) "If for any reason .......... (insert name of municipal corporation or county) revokes the designation of the area, 
entitlements granted under this agreement shall continue for the number of years specified under this agreement, 
unless .......... (insert name of owner) materially fails to fulfill its obligations under this agreement and ................... 
(insert name of municipal corporation or county) terminates or modifies the exemptions from taxation pursuant to 
this agreement." 

(6) "If .......... (insert name of owner) materially fails to fulfill its obligations under this agreement, or if .......... (insert 
name of municipal corporation or county) determines that the certification as to delinquent taxes required by this 
agreement is fraudulent, .......... (insert name of municipal corporation or county) may terminate or modify the 
exemptions from taxation granted under this agreement." 

(7) ".......... (insert name of owner) shall provide to the proper tax incentive review council any information 
reasonably required by the council to evaluate the applicant's compliance with the agreement, including returns 
filed pursuant to section 5711.02 of the Ohio Revised Code if requested by the council." 

(8) "This agreement is not transferable or assignable without the express, written approval of .......... (insert name of 
municipal corporation or county)." 

http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5711.02


 

(9) "Exemptions from taxation granted under this agreement shall be revoked if it is determined that ........... (insert 
name of owner), any successor to that person, or any related member (as those terms are defined in division (E) of 
section 3735.671 of the Ohio Revised Code) has violated the prohibition against entering into this agreement under 
division (E) of section 3735.671 or section 5709.62 or 5709.63 of the Ohio Revised Code prior to the time prescribed 
by that division or either of those sections." 

(10) ".......... (insert name of owner) and ........... (insert name of municipal corporation or county) acknowledge that 
this agreement must be approved by formal action of the legislative authority of .......... (insert name of municipal 
corporation or county) as a condition for the agreement to take effect. This agreement takes effect upon such 
approval." 

The statement described in division (C)(6) of this section may include the following statement, appended at the end 
of the statement: ", and may require the repayment of the amount of taxes that would have been payable had the 
property not been exempted from taxation under this agreement." If the agreement includes a statement requiring 
repayment of exempted taxes, it also may authorize the legislative authority to secure repayment of such taxes by 
a lien on the exempted property in the amount required to be repaid. Such a lien shall attach, and may be perfected, 
collected, and enforced, in the same manner as a mortgage lien on real property, and shall otherwise have the same 
force and effect as a mortgage lien on real property. 

(D) Except as otherwise provided in this division, an agreement entered into under this section shall require that the 
owner pay an annual fee equal to the greater of one per cent of the amount of taxes exempted under the agreement 
or five hundred dollars; provided, however, that if the value of the incentives exceeds two hundred fifty thousand 
dollars, the fee shall not exceed two thousand five hundred dollars. The fee shall be payable to the legislative 
authority once per year for each year the agreement is effective on the days and in the form specified in the 
agreement. Fees paid shall be deposited in a special fund created for such purpose by the legislative authority and 
shall be used by the legislative authority exclusively for the purpose of complying with section 3735.672 of the 
Revised Code and by the tax incentive review council created under section 5709.85 of the Revised Code exclusively 
for the purposes of performing the duties prescribed under that section. The legislative authority may waive or 
reduce the amount of the fee, but such waiver or reduction does not affect the obligations of the legislative authority 
or the tax incentive review council to comply with section3735.672 or 5709.85 of the Revised Code. 

(E) If any person that is party to an agreement granting an exemption from taxation discontinues operations at the 
structure to which that exemption applies prior to the expiration of the term of the agreement, that person, any 
successor to that person, and any related member shall not enter into an agreement under this section or 
section 5709.62 , 5709.63 , or 5709.632 of the Revised Code, and no legislative authority shall enter into such an 
agreement with such a person, successor, or related member, prior to the expiration of five years after the 
discontinuation of operations. As used in this division, "successor" means a person to which the assets or equity of 
another person has been transferred, which transfer resulted in the full or partial nonrecognition of gain or loss, or 
resulted in a carryover basis, both as determined by rule adopted by the tax commissioner. "Related member" has 
the same meaning as defined in section 5733.042 of the Revised Code without regard to division (B) of that section. 

The director of development shall review all agreements submitted to the director under division (F) of this section 
for the purpose of enforcing this division. If the director determines there has been a violation of this division, the 

http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.62
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.63
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/3735.672
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.85
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/3735.672
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.85
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.62
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.63
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5709.632
http://codes.ohio.gov/orc/5733.042


 

 

director shall notify the legislative authority of such violation, and the legislative authority immediately shall revoke 
the exemption granted under the agreement. 

(F) When an agreement is entered into under this section, the legislative authority authorizing the agreement shall 
forward a copy of the agreement to the director of development within fifteen days after the agreement is entered 
into. 

Effective Date: 09-26-2003; 03-23-2005 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



INCENTIVES APPLICATION1. a. Name of property owner, home or main office address, contact person, andtelephone number (attach additional pages if multiple enterprise participants).Enterprise Name: Contact Person:Address: Telephone Number:b. Project site:Contact Person:Address: Telephone Number:Date:2.  a. Nature of commercial/industrial activity (manufacturing, warehousing, wholesale orretail stores, or other) to be conducted at the site.b. List primary 6 digit North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) #Business may list other relevant SIC numbers.________________________________________c. If a consolidation, what are the components of the consolidation? (must itemize thelocation, assets, and employment positions to be transferred:d. Form of business of enterprise (corporation, partnership, proprietorship, or other).3.  Name of principal owner(s) or officers of the business.4.  a. State the enterprise's current employment level at the proposed project site:b. Will the project involve the relocation of employment positions or assets from one Ohiolocation to another? Yes  Noc. If yes, state the locations from which employment positions or assets will be relocatedand the location to where the employment positions or assets will be located:d. State the enterprise's current employment level in Ohio (itemized for full and part-timeand permanent and temporary employees):e. State the enterprise's current employment level for each facility to be affected by the

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
KB42							Denny Bolton

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
PO Box 308 Lewis Center, OH 43035					614-352-0077

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
5 E. Winter St Suite 200 (42 Sandusky on auditor site)

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Office space

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
LLC

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
King B Realty - Dennis Bolton and Kreg King

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
3

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Full Time

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Oval



relocation of employment positions or assets:f. What is the projected impact of the relocation, detailing the number and type ofemployees and/or assets to be relocated?5.  Does the Property Owner owe:a.  Any delinquent taxes to the State of Ohio or a political subdivision of the state?Yes___ No ____b. Any monies to the State or a state agency for the administration or enforcement of anyenvironmental laws of the State?         Yes _ No ___c.  Any other moneys to the State, a state agency or a political subdivision of the State thatare past due, whether the amounts owed are being contested in a court of law or not?Yes No  ___d. If yes to any of the above, please provide details of each instance including but notlimited to the location, amounts and/or case identification numbers (add additionalsheets).6.  Project Description:7.   Project will begin ,20    and be completed           ,20    provided a taxexemption is provided.8.  a. Estimate the number of new employees the property owner will cause to be created atthe facility that is the project site (job creation projection must be itemized by the name ofthe employer, full and part-time and permanent and temporary):b. State the time frame of this projected hiring:               yrs.c. State proposed schedule for hiring (itemize by full and part-time and permanent andtemporary employees):9.  a. Estimate the amount of annual payroll such new employees will add $             (newannual payroll must be itemized by full- and part-time and permanent and temporary newemployees).b. Indicate separately the amount of existing annual payroll relating to any job retentionclaim resulting from the project: $10.  An estimate of the amount to be invested by the enterprise to establish, expand,renovate or occupy a facility:A.  Acquisition of Buildings: $

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
x

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
x

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
x

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Renovating 2nd floor for office space

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
11/15/17

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
17

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
1/15

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
18

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
10

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
3

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
NA

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
400,000

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
200,000

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
462,500



B.  Additions/New Construction: $C.  Improvements to existing buildings: $D.  Machinery & Equipment: $E. Furniture & Fixtures: $F.  Inventory: $Total New Project Investment: $11.  a. Business requests the following incentives:
b. Business's reasons for requesting incentives (be quantitatively specific as possible):
Submission of this application expressly authorizes  (name of local jurisdiction)  to  contactthe Ohio Environmental Protection Agency to confirm statements contained within  thisapplication including item# 5 and to review applicable confidential records. As part of thisapplication, the property owner may also be required to directly request from the OhioDepartment of Taxation, or complete a waiver form allowing the Department of Taxation torelease specific tax records to the local jurisdiction considering the request. (The Applicantagrees to supply additional information upon request.)The Applicant affirmatively covenants that the information contained in and submittedwith this application is complete and correct and is aware of the ORC Sections 9.66(C)(1)and 2921.13(D)(1) penalties for falsification which could result in the forfeiture of allcurrent and future economic development assistance benefits as well as a fine of not morethan $1,000 and/or a term of imprisonment of not more than six months.Name of Property Owner DateSignature Typed Name and Title* A copy of this proposal must be forwarded by the local governments to the affected Boardof Education along with notice of the meeting date on which the local government willreview the proposal. Notice must be given a minimum of fourteen (14) days prior to thescheduled meeting to permit the Board of Education to appear and/or comment before thelegislative authorities considering the request.** Attach to Final Incentives Agreements as Exhibit A

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
5,000

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
King B RealtyDennis Bolton and Kreg King		9/1/17

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
80,000

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
85,000

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
100%/15 year Community Reinvestment Area tax abatement on building improvements

dennybolton@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
The costs of architectural services has put the project into a situation where our pro forma on completing the building does not work. Financial assistance is needed.



 1 

COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA AGREEMENT 
CITY OF DELAWARE, KB42, LTD. 

 
This agreement made and entered into by and between the City of Delaware, Ohio, a municipal 
government, with its main offices located at 1 South Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015, 
KB42, LTD, PO Box 308 Lewis Center, Ohio 43035, WITNESSETH; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has encouraged the development of real property and the 
acquisition of personal property located in the area designated as Community Reinvestment 
Area 141-1135-01; and 
 
WHEREAS, KB42, LTD. (building owner) desires to renovate an historic building for retail use 
by an office user (tenant and job creator) within the boundaries of the aforementioned 
Community Reinvestment Area, provided that the appropriate development incentives are 
available to support the economic viability of said PROJECT; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Delaware, Ohio, by Resolution No. 17-52 adopted July 
23, 2001, designated the area as a “Community Reinvestment Area” pursuant to Chapter 3735 
of the Ohio Revised Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, effective September 4, 2001, the Director of Development of the State of Ohio 
determined that the aforementioned area designated in said Resolution No. 01-52 contains the 
characteristics set forth in Section 3735.66 of the Ohio Revised Code and confirmed said area 
as Community Reinvestment Area #141-1135-01 under said Chapter 3735; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware, having the appropriate authority for the stated type of project 
desires to provide KB42, LTD. with incentives available for the development of the PROJECT in 
said Community Reinvestment Area under Chapter 3735 of the Ohio Revised Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, KB42, LTD. has submitted a proposed agreement application (herein attached as 
Exhibit A) to the City of Delaware (hereinafter referred to as “APPLICATION”); and 
 
WHEREAS, KB42, LTD. has remitted the required state application fee of $750.00 made 
payable to the Ohio Department of Development with the APPLICATION to be forwarded to said 
department with a copy of the final agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tax Incentive Negotiating Committee of the City of Delaware investigated the 
APPLICATION of KB42, LTD. on September 19, 2017, and recommended approval to the 
Council of the City of Delaware on the basis that KB42, LTD. is qualified by financial 
responsibility and business experience to create and preserve employment opportunities in said 
Community Reinvestment Area and improve the economic climate of the City of Delaware; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project site as proposed by KB42, LTD. is located in the Delaware City School 
District and effective November 26, 2001, a Delaware City School District Board of Education 
resolution authorized the Superintendent to act on its behalf to negotiate, approve, and define 
terms and conditions on any Tax Incentive Agreement; the minutes of the September 19, 2017 
Tax Incentive Negotiating Committee document the Superintendent’s approval, and the boards 
of education have been notified in accordance with Section 5709.83 and been given a copy of 
the APPLICATION; and 
 



 2 

WHEREAS, the project site as proposed by KB42, LTD. is located in the Delaware Area School 
District and effective April 15, 2004, a Delaware City School District Board of Education 
resolution authorized the Superintendent to act on its behalf to negotiate, approve, and define 
terms and conditions on any Tax Incentive Agreement; the minutes of the September 19, 2017 
Tax Incentive Negotiating Committee document the Superintendent’s approval, and the boards 
of education have been notified in accordance with Section 5709.83 and been given a copy of 
the APPLICATION; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3735.67(A) and in conformance with the format required under 
Section 3735.671(B) of the Ohio Revised Code, the parties hereto desire to set forth their 
agreement with respect to matters hereinafter contained; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter contained and the 
benefit to be derived by the parties from the execution hereof, the parties herein agree as 
follows: 
 

1. KB42, LTD. shall renovate the second floor of an historic downtown building located at 
42 N. Sandusky Street on Parcel 51943108023000, as the same is known and 
designated on the Auditor’s revised list of lots in Delaware, Ohio.   
 
The PROJECT will involve a total on-site infrastructure investment by KB42, LTD. of 
EIGHTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($80,000), plus or minus 10%, at the PROJECT site 
according to the following: 
 
 

Real Property  
New Building Construction $0 

On-Site Infrastructure $80,000 
Sub Total Real Property $80,000 

Building Acquisition $462,500 
Total Real Property $542,500 

Personal Property  
     Equipment $0 

F&F  $5,000 
Inventory $0 

Total Investment $547,500 
 
No tax incentives are available for the Personal Property. 
 
The PROJECT will begin by Nov. 1, 2017 and all acquisition, construction and 
construction will be completed by April 1, 2018. 
 

2. KB42, LTD. shall create or cause to be hired within a time period not exceeding 36 
months after the completion of construction and subsequent occupancy of the aforesaid 
facility, the equivalent of 10 new full-time equivalent (FTE) permanent job opportunities 
at the PROJECT site. 

 



 3 

The job creation period begins April 1, 2018 and all jobs will be in place by April 1, 2021 
(3 years or 36 months after the completion of the PROJECT per ORC3735B4). 
 
KB42, LTD. currently has 0 full-time temporary employees, and 0 part-time temporary 
employees at the project site.   
 
KB42, LTD. have 0 employees at other sites in Ohio or the US.   
 
This increase in the number of employees shall result in at least SIX HUNDRED 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($600,000) in total annual payroll generated at the PROJECT 
site by April 1, 2021.   
 
Based on new job and payroll creation levels, the City of Delaware estimates an annual 
new employee income tax revenue amount of $11,100 ($600,000 payroll times the 
current income tax rate of 1.85%) for the PROJECT.  If in any year of this Agreement 
after the first three years, the level of new and retained payroll does not reach or falls 
below levels established by this Agreement, KB42, LTD. agree to reimburse the City of 
Delaware for lost employee income taxes. Should the City’s income tax rates change, 
these figures are adjusted accordingly.  

 
3. KB42, LTD. shall provide to the proper Tax Incentive Review Council any information 

reasonably required by the council to evaluate the property owner’s compliance with the 
agreement, including returns filed pursuant to section 5711.02 of the Ohio Revised Code 
if requested by the council (ORC3735.671C7). 

 
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
a. KB42, LTD. shall make the following payments totaling $7,246.25 to Delaware City 

School District and Delaware Area Career Center (Split between districts based on 
current tax rate percentage split.) to benefit the districts’ educational initiatives. This 
payment shall be subject to the terms and conditions of a separate School 
Compensation Agreement between KB42, LTD., DELAWARE CITY SCHOOLS, 
DELAWARE AREA CAREER CENTER and the CITY OF DELAWARE. The 
companies will make these payments directly to the school districts upon receipt of 
invoices from the Delaware City Schools and Delaware Area Career Center for the 
amounts established in the School Compensation Agreement issued at the following 
times. 

School Compensation Payment #    Payment Due Date         Amount  

Payment #1                        9/30/19                  $483.08 
Payment #2                        9/30/20                $483.08 
Payment #3                        9/30/21                  $483.08 
Payment #4                        9/30/22                  $483.08 
Payment #5                        9/30/23                  $483.08 
Payment #6                        9/30/24                 $483.08 
Payment #7                        9/30/25                  $483.08 
Payment #8                       9/30/26                  $483.08 
Payment #9                        9/30/27                  $483.08 
Payment #10                       9/30/28                  $483.08 
Payment #11   9/30/29   $483.08 
Payment #12   9/30/30   $483.08 



 4 

Payment #13   9/30/31   $483.08 
Payment #14   9/30/32   $483.08 
Payment #15   9/30/33   $483.08 
 

b. KB42, LTD. or its shall maintain a membership in the MAINSTREET DELAWARE, 
INC. 

c. KB42, LTD. shall contact the Superintendent, Delaware Area Career Center for 
information on adult education and training services. 

 
4. City of Delaware hereby grants KB42, LTD. a tax exemption for real property 

improvements made to the PROJECT site pursuant to Section 3735.67 of the Ohio 
Revised Code and shall be for fifteen (15) years in the following amounts: 

 
  Year of Tax Exemption  Tax Exemption Amount 
 
   Year  1     100% 
   Year  2     100% 
   Year  3     100% 
   Year  4     100% 
   Year  5     100% 
   Year  6     100% 
   Year  7     100% 
   Year  8     100% 
   Year  9     100% 
   Year 10    100% 
   Year 11    100% 
   Year 12    100% 
   Year 13    100% 
   Year 14    100% 
   Year 15    100% 
 

The exemption commences the first full taxable year the facility is 100% complete.  No 
exemption shall commence before December 31, 2018, nor extend beyond December 
31, 2033.  Said exemption shall be based on the increase on the assessed value of real 
property attributed to the real property improvements at the PROJECT site.  KB42, LTD. 
and/or its tenant(s) must file the appropriate tax forms (DTE 23) with the County Auditor 
to effect and maintain the exemptions covered in the agreement. 

 
5. A. The City of Delaware waives the annual fee equal to the greater of one percent 

of the dollar value of incentives offered under the agreement or five hundred dollars 
(ORC3735.671D). 

 
6. KB42, LTD. shall pay such real and tangible personal property taxes as are not 

exempted under this agreement and are charged against such property and shall file all 
tax reports and returns as required by law. If KB42, LTD. fails to pay such taxes or file 
such returns and reports after written notification, all incentives granted under this 
agreement are rescinded beginning with the year for which such taxes are charged or 
such reports or returns are required to be filed and thereafter (ORC3735.671C2). 

 
7. City of Delaware shall perform such acts as are reasonably necessary or appropriate to 

effect, claim, reserve, and maintain exemptions from taxation granted under this 



 5 

agreement including, without limitation, joining in the execution of all documentation and 
providing any necessary certificates required in connection with such exemptions 
(ORC3735.671C4). 

 
8. If for any reason the Community Reinvestment Area designation expires, the Director of 

the Ohio Department Services Agency revokes certification of the area, or the City of 
Delaware revokes the designation of the area, entitlements granted under this 
agreement shall continue for the number of years specified under this agreement, unless 
KB42, LTD. materially fails to fulfill its obligations under this agreement and the City of 
Delaware terminates or modifies the exemptions from taxation granted under this 
agreement (ORC3735.671C5). 

 
9. If KB42, LTD. materially fails to fulfill its obligations under this agreement, or if the City of 

Delaware determines that the certification as to delinquent taxes required by this 
agreement is fraudulent, the City of Delaware may terminate or modify the exemptions 
from taxation granted under this agreement and may require the repayment of the 
amount of taxes that would have been payable had the property not been exempted 
from taxation under this agreement (ORC3735.671C6). 

 
10. KB42, LTD. hereby certify that at the time this agreement is executed, KB42, LTD. does 

not owe any delinquent real or tangible personal property taxes to any taxing authority of 
the State of Ohio, and does not owe delinquent taxes for which KB42, LTD. is liable 
under Chapter 5733., 5735., 5739., 5741., 5743., 5747., or 5753. of the Ohio Revised 
Code, or, if such delinquent taxes are owed, KB42, LTD. currently is paying the 
delinquent taxes pursuant to an undertaking enforceable by the State of Ohio or an 
agent or instrumentality thereof, has filed a petition in bankruptcy under 11 U.S.C.A. 101, 
et seq., or such a petition has been filed against KB42, LTD. For the purposes of the 
certification, delinquent taxes are taxes that remain unpaid on the latest day prescribed 
for payment without penalty under the chapter of the Revised Code governing payment 
of those taxes (ORC3735.671C3). 

 
11. KB42, LTD. affirmatively covenants that KB42, LTD. does not owe: (1) any delinquent 

taxes to the State of Ohio or a political subdivision of the State; (2) any moneys to the 
State or a state agency for the administration or enforcement of any environmental laws 
of the State; and (3) any other moneys to the State, a state agency or a political 
subdivision of the State that are past due, whether the amounts owed are being 
contested in a court of law or not. 

 
12. KB42, LTD. and the CITY OF DELAWARE acknowledge that this agreement must be 

approved by formal action of the legislative authority of the City of Delaware and 
approval and execution of this agreement by KB42, LTD. as a condition for the 
agreement to take effect (ORC3735.671C10).  

 
13. The City of Delaware has developed a policy to ensure recipients of a Community 

Reinvestment Area tax benefits practice non-discriminating hiring in its operations.  By 
executing this agreement, KB42, LTD. is committing to following non-discriminating 
hiring practices acknowledging that no individual may be denied employment solely on 
the basis of race, religion, sex, disability, color, national origin, or ancestry. 

 
14. Exemptions from taxation granted under this agreement shall be revoked if it is 

determined that KB42, LTD., any successor property owner, or any related member (as 



 6 

those terms are defined in Division (E) of Section 3735.671 of the Ohio Revised Code) 
has violated the prohibition against entering into this agreement under Division (E) of 
Section 3735.671 or Section 5709.62 or 5709.63 of the Ohio Revised Code prior to the 
time prescribed by that division or either of those sections (ORC3735.671C9). 

 
15. KB42, LTD. affirmatively covenants that it has made no false statements to the State or 

local political subdivisions in the process of obtaining approval of the Community 
Reinvestment Area incentives.  If any representative of KB42, LTD. has knowingly made 
a false statement to the State or local political subdivision to obtain the Community 
Reinvestment Area incentives, KB42, LTD. shall be required to immediately return all 
benefits received under the Community Reinvestment Area Agreement pursuant ORC 
Section 9.66 (C)(2) and shall be ineligible for any future economic development 
assistance from the State, any state agency or a political subdivision pursuant to ORC 
Section 9.66(C)(1).  Any person who provides a false statement to secure economic 
development assistance may be guilty of falsification, a misdemeanor of the first degree, 
pursuant to ORC Section 2921.13A3(D)(1), which is punishable by a fine of not more 
than $100 and/or a term of imprisonment of not more than six months. 

 
16. KB42, LTD. acknowledge that this agreement is not transferable or assignable without 

the express, written approval of the City of Delaware (ORC3735.671C8). 
 

17. KB42, LTD. acknowledge that if any person that is party to an agreement granting an 
exemption from taxation discontinues operations at the structure to which that exemption 
applies prior to the expiration of the term of the agreement, that person, any successor 
to that person, and any related member shall not enter into an agreement under this 
section or sections 5709.62, 5709.63, or 5709.632 of the Ohio Revised Code, and no 
legislative authority shall enter into such an agreement with such a person, successor, or 
related member, prior to the expiration of five years after  the discontinuation of 
operations.  As used in this division, ‘successor’ means a person to which the assets or 
equity of another person has been transferred, which transfer resulted in the full or 
partial non-recognition of gain or loss, or resulted in a carryover basis, both as 
determined by rule adopted by the tax commissioner.  ‘Related member’ has the same 
meaning as defined in section 5733.042 of the Ohio Revised Code without regard to 
Division (B) of that section (ORC3735.671E). 

 
18. KB42, LTD. hereby represent that it has full authority to act, negotiate, and execute this 

agreement. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Delaware, Ohio, by R. Thomas Homan, its City Manager, 
and pursuant to Ordinance 17-__ adopted on June 12, 2017, has caused this instrument to be 
executed this ______ day of __________ 2017, KB42, LTD. has caused this instrument to be 
executed on this ______ day of __________ 2017. 
 
 
 
 
    CITY OF DELAWARE 
 
    By:___________________________ 
    R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 



 7 

 
 
    KB42, LTD. 
 
    ___________________________     
          Denny Bolton, Managing Partner 
 
    ___________________________     
          Kreg King, Managing Partner 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _________________________________ 
      Darren Shulman, Delaware City Attorney 



 1 

School Compensation Agreement 
KB42, LTD 

Community Reinvestment Area #141-1135-01 
 
This agreement between the City of Delaware, a municipal corporation, with 
its offices at 1 South Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015; Delaware City 
School District Board of Education, a public school district, with its principal 
offices at 74 West William St., Delaware, Ohio 43015; Delaware Area Career 
Center Board of Education, a public school district with its principal offices at 
4565 Columbus Pike, Delaware, OH 43015, and KB42, LTD., PO Box 308 Lewis 
Center, Ohio 43035, specifies the manner in which and procedures to be used 
pursuant to Ohio Revised Code 3735 authorizing general compensation 
relating to the Community Reinvestment Area tax abatement for the renovation 
of a building at 38 E. Winter St. in Delaware’s Community Reinvestment Area 
#141-1135-01. 
 
WHEREAS, the Community Reinvestment Program, pursuant to Chapter 3735 
of the Ohio Revised Code authorizes cities and counties to grant real property 
tax exemptions on eligible new investments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City Council of Delaware, Ohio, by Resolution 
No. 01-52, adopted July 23, 2001, designated the area as a “Community 
Reinvestment Area” pursuant to Chapter 3735 of the Ohio Revised Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, effective September 4, 2001, the Director of Development of the 
State of Ohio determined that the aforementioned area designated in said 
Resolution No. 01-52 contains the characteristics set forth in Section 3735.66 
of the Ohio Revised Code and confirmed said area as Community Reinvestment 
Area #141-1135-01 under said Chapter 3735; and 
 
Whereas, effective November 26, 2001, a Delaware City School District Board of 
Education resolution authorized the Superintendent to act on its behalf to 
negotiate, approve, and define terms and conditions on any Tax Incentive 
Agreement; the minutes of the September 19, 2017 Tax Incentive Negotiating 
Committee document the Superintendent’s approval; and 
 
Whereas, effective April 15, 2004, a Delaware Area Career Center Board of 
Education resolution authorized the Superintendent to act on its behalf to 
negotiate, approve, and define terms and conditions on any Tax Incentive 
Agreement; the minutes of the September 19, 2017, Tax Incentive Negotiating 
Committee document the Superintendent’s approval; and 
 
Whereas, the City of Delaware within Ordinance Number 17-__ adopted on 
____________, 2017, has acted pursuant to ORC 3735 to grant a tax exemption 
to KB42, LTD., and entered into a formal Community Reinvestment Area 
abatement agreement on _________, 2017; and 



 2 

 
Whereas, Item 3(a) of the Community Reinvestment Area Agreement relating to 
the aforementioned project requires compensation to the Delaware City School 
District and Delaware Area Career Center for the sole benefit of educational 
initiatives. 
 
Now therefore, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual promises, 
covenants, and agreements hereinafter set forth by the City of Delaware, 
Delaware City School District, Delaware Area Career Center and KB42, LTD., 
agree as follows: 
 
Section 1. KB42, LTD or its tenant, shall pay FOUR HUNDRED EIGHTY-
THREE DOLLARS AND EIGHT CENTS ($483.08) per year for fifteen (15) years 
to the Delaware City School District and Delaware Area Career Center in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in Item 3(a) of the 
Community Reinvestment Area Agreement for the referenced project. This 
payment shall be made upon receipt of invoices per the instructions set forth in 
Item 3(a) of the Community Reinvestment Area Agreement relating to the 
aforementioned project, and the first payment shall be due September 30, 2019 
and dispersed per Section 2 of this agreement. 
 
Section 2. The cash payments made by KB42, LTD. or its tenant(s) to the 
Delaware City School District and Delaware Area Career Center satisfies ORC 
Section 5709.82C(2) (School Compensation Agreement is mutually 
acceptable) and shall be used for educational initiatives for the sole benefit of 
the Delaware City Schools and the Delaware Area Career Center, as follows: 
 
 a. Delaware City School District  $463.42 
 b. Delaware Area Career Center  $19.66 
 c. Total      $483.08  
 
Section 3. This agreement may be amended or modified by the parties, only in 
writing, signed by all parties to the agreement or by applicable law changes. 
 
Note: All parties agree that if Ohio tax reform results in no net tax 
incentive benefits (if the sum of tax incentives offered through the 
Community Reinvestment Area Agreement minus the school 
compensation payment is negative), KB42, LTD. may request that the 
City of Delaware Tax Incentive Review Council recommend agreement 
modification or termination.  No School Compensation payment is 
required if there is no net tax benefit to KB42, LTD. or its tenant(s). 
 
Section 4. This agreement sets forth the entire agreement and understanding 
between the parties as to the subject matter contained herein and merges and 
supersedes all prior discussions, agreements, and undertakings of every kind 
between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this agreement. 



 3 

 
Section 5. All payments, certificates, reports, and notices which are required 
to or may be given pursuant to the provisions of this agreement shall be sent 
by regular mail, postage prepaid, and shall be deemed to have been given or 
delivered when so mailed to the following addresses: 
 

R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
City of Delaware 
1 South Sandusky Street 
Delaware, Ohio 43015 

 
     Paul A. Craft, PhD, Superintendent 
     Delaware City School District 
     74 W. William St. 
     Delaware, Ohio 43015 
 
     Mary Beth Freeman, Superintendent 
     Delaware Area Career Center 
     4565 Columbus Pike 
     Delaware, Ohio 43015 
 
     Denny Bolton, Managing Partner 
     KB42, LTD.       
     PO BOX 308 
     Lewis Center, OH 43035 
 
     Kreg King, Managing Partner 
     KB42, LTD.       
     PO BOX 308 
     Lewis Center, OH 43035 
 
 
Any party may change its contact or mailing address for receiving notices and 
reports by giving written notice of such change to the other parties. 
 
Section 7. The invalidity of any provision of this agreement shall not affect the 
other provisions of this agreement, and this agreement shall be construed in all 
respects as if any invalid portions were omitted. 
 
In witness whereof, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as 
of this __ day of _____ 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 



 4 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
 
 
          __________________________________________ 
           R. Thomas Homan 
 
 
 
DELAWARE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
        
  Paul A. Craft, Superintendent 
 
 
DELAWARE AREA CAREER CENTER 
 
 
        
  Mary Beth Freeman, Superintendent 
 
 
KB42, LTD. 
   
                  
  Denny Bolton, Managing Partner 
 
                  
  Kreg King, Managing Partner 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _________________________________ 
      Darren Shulman, Delaware City Attorney 
 
 



0 30 6015
ft

Delaware County Auditor
George Kaitsa

Information contained within this map may be used to generally locate, identify and inventory land parcels within Delaware County. 
Delaware County cannot warrant or guarantee the information contained herein, including, but not limited to its accuracy 

or  completeness. The map parcel lines shown are approximate and this information cannot be constructed or used as a "legal description" of a parcel.
Flood Plain information is obtained from FEMA and is administered by the Delaware County Building Department (740-833-2201).

Please report any errors or omissions to the Delaware County Auditor's office at delcogis@co.delaware.oh.us.
Prepared by: Delaware County Auditor's GIS Office

/
42 N. Sandusky - CRA Exhibit

Printed o n 9/29/2017



FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  17  DATE: 10/09/2017 

ORDINANCE NO: 17-66 RESOLUTION NO: 

READING: FIRST PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
October 23, 2017 at 7:45 p.m. 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF DELAWARE FOR APPROVAL OF A 
REZONING AMENDMENT FOR FIRE STATION 304 ON 4.102 ACRES TO A-1 
(AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER 
OF CHESHIRE ROAD AND GLENN PARKWAY. 

BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified Ordinances. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on October 4, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 

POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-66 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF DELAWARE FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR FIRE 
STATION 304 ON 4.102 ACRES TO A-1 
(AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF CHESHIRE ROAD AND 
GLENN PARKWAY. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 4, 2017 
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for Fire Station 304 on 
4.102 acres to A-1 (Agricultural District) and located at the northwest corner of 
Cheshire Road and Glenn Parkway (2017-2359). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Rezoning Amendment for Fire Station 304 on 4.102 
acres to A-1 (Agricultural District) and located at the northwest corner of 
Cheshire Road and Glenn Parkway, is hereby confirmed, approved, and 
accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



















































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  18    DATE: 10/23/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-67    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       October 23, 2017 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF DELAWARE FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR FIRE STATION 304 ON 4.102 ACRES ZONED 
A-1 (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF CHESHIRE ROAD AND GLENN PARKWAY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on October 4, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-67 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF DELAWARE FOR 
APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR 
FIRE STATION 304 ON 4.102 ACRES ZONED A-1 
(AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF CHESHIRE ROAD AND 
GLENN PARKWAY. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 4, 2017 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit for Fire Station 304 on 
4.102 acres zoned A-1 (Agricultural District) and located at the northwest 
corner of Cheshire Road and Glenn Parkway (2017-2360). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Conditional Use Permit for Fire Station 304 on 
4.102 acres zoned A-1 (Agricultural District) and located at the northwest 
corner of Cheshire Road and Glenn Parkway, is hereby confirmed, approved, 
and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  19  

ORDINANCE NO: 17-68 

READING: FIRST 

DATE: 10/09/2017 

RESOLUTION NO: 

PUBLIC HEARING: NO  

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF DELAWARE FOR APPROVAL OF A 
COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR FIRE 
STATION 304 ON 4.102 ACRES ZONED A-1 (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF CHESHIRE ROAD AND GLENN 
PARKWAY. 

BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per Chapter 1129 Procedures of the Codified Ordinances. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on October 4, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 

POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-68 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF DELAWARE FOR 
APPROVAL OF A COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND 
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR FIRE STATION 304 
ON 4.102 ACRES ZONED A-1 (AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF CHESHIRE ROAD AND GLENN 
PARKWAY. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on October 4, 2017 
recommended approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
for Fire Station 304 on 4.102 acres zoned A-1 (Agricultural District) and located 
at the northwest corner of Cheshire Road and Glenn Parkway (2017-2361). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
for Fire Station 304 on 4.102 acres zoned A-1 (Agricultural District) and located 
at the northwest corner of Cheshire Road and Glenn Parkway is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted, with the following conditions that: 
 
1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 

storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. Twenty five evergreen trees a minimum 8 feet tall at installation shall be 
planted along the western property line in a soldier course alignment.  

3. The Shade Tree Commission shall review and approve all landscape 
plans. 

4. The limestone on the building and sign base shall be Delaware blue vein 
limestone or equivalent as approved by staff.  

5. All building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to 
match the adjacent building color. 

6. The Applicant shall submit all building elevations along with material 
and color samples for all building materials for staff review and approval. 

7. The lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 
Official and all lighting must meet the requirements of the Planning & 
Zoning Code. 



8. The current four parcels shall be consolidated into a single parcel prior 
to final certificate of occupancy.  

9. The signage plan shall conform to the City’s branding, gateway and 
corridor plan and facility signage requirements. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



City Manager Report 20171009 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: October 5, 2017 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
  

September 19 
* Strand Board Meeting 
September 20 
* Ross Art Museum Outdoor Exhibit 
September 25 
* Rotary 
* City Council 
September 26 
* Meeting with Mark Raiff 
September 27 
* Historic Preservation Commission Meeting 
October 2 
* Rotary 
* CIP Work Session 
October 3 
* 911 Board Meeting 
October 4 
* Evening of Generosity 
October 5 
* Transportation Academy 
 
 

 



 
  Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

1 2 
Council CIP Work 
Session -6 

3 
Council CIP Work 
Session if needed-
6 
Public Works-
cancelled 

4 
Civil Service 
Commission 3 
 
Planning 7 

5 6 7 

8 9 
Council 7 

10 
Sister City 6 

11 
BZA 7-cancelled 

12 13 14 
15 16 17 

Parks & Rec Bd 7 

18 19 
Airport 
Commission 7-
cancelled 

20 21 

22 23 
Council 7 

24 
Shade Tree 7 

25 
HPC 7 

26 27 28 
29 30 31     

       2017 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – October 9, 2017 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2017 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
Builderscape, Inc. Glenross Park Improvement-Phase 

2 
$91,500 Parks 

Esri Small Municipal and County Govt 
Enterprise License Agreement 

$35,000/yr IT 
 

Chi Corporation Contract equipment, support, and 
engineering services 

$73,772 IT 

     


	01 20171009 agenda
	02 20170925 council minutes
	03 20171002 cip council minutes
	04 20170725 shade tree minutes
	05 20170726 hpc minutes
	06 20170906 civil service minutes
	07 20170906 planning minutes
	08 Fact Sheet Res 17-58 PID 93147 Urban ReSurf
	09 res no. 17-58  PID 93147 Urban ReSurf
	10 Sister City Annual Report - 2017
	11 Aspen Energy
	City Of Delaware�Community Energy Aggregation Program
	Energy Aggregation
	The Process
	Economic Impact
	The Aspen Advantage
	The Aspen Advantage - Cont’d

	12 Jennis Nail Spa & Bar Liquor Request
	13 Liquor Permit Jennis Nail Salon 30 day extension approval
	14 liquor control address correction-Jennis
	15  Liquor L-17-07 Jennis Nail Spa
	16 fact sheet res 17-54, 2018 2022 cip
	17 res 17-54, 2018-2022 cip
	18 2018-2022 Final CIP
	19 fact sheet ord 17-61 codified amend animal neglect
	20 ord 17-61, codified amend animal offenses
	21 fact sheet res 17-57, DORA
	22 res 17-57, DORA
	23 DORA Application Final Draft
	24 DORA Executive Summary
	25 Main Street Delaware-DORA
	26 DORA Public Comment
	27 fact sheet ord 17-62, manager compensation - Copy
	28 ord 17-62, city manager compensation
	29 Agreement- City Manager Employment 2017 DRAFT
	30 fact sheet res 17-59, sustainable2050 morpc
	31 res 17-59, sustainable2050 morpc
	32 fact sheet ord 17-64, approving expansion northern nca
	33 ord  17-64, Approving expansion of Northern NCA
	34 amend to petition nca expansion
	35 ord 17-64 , nca expansion map
	36 fact sheet ord 17 -65 , KB42 CRA_SchoolComp
	37 ord  17-65 , KB42 CRA  School Comp
	38 KB42_School Notification Letter
	3735.671 Written agreement where commercial or industrial property is to be exempted.

	39 KB42 Bolton_Incentives_Application_2017
	40 KB 42CRA Agreement KB42 Hughes edit
	Sub Total Real Property
	Total Real Property
	Total Investment


	41 KB42 School Comp_2017
	42 KB42 MAP boltoninsurancemap
	43 factsheet ord 17-66, Fire Station 304 REZ
	44 ord 17-66 , Fires Station 304  REZ
	45 fire station 304 staff report
	46 factsheet ord 17-67, Fire Station 304 CUP
	47 ord 17-67,  Fire Station 304  CUP
	48 factsheet ord 17-68, Fire Station 304 CPFDP
	49 ord 17-68, Fires Station 304 CPFDP
	50 city managers report 20171009
	51 october calender
	52 20171009 contract approval

